

Microsoft Power Bl Introduction

Student Manual

https://theTechMentors.com info@theTechMentors.com Revised 25 January 2023

© 2023 TechMentors

ALL RIGHTS RESERVED

No part of this manual may be copied, photocopied, or reproduced by any means, be it transmitted, transcribed, photocopied, stored in a retrieval system, or translated into any language in any form, without the prior written permission from the author, Thomas M. Chandler. All brand names used in this book are trade names, service marks, trademarks, or registered trademarks of their respective holders.

THERE ARE NO WARRANTIES, EXPRESSED OR IMPLIED, INCLUDING WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE, MADE WITH RESPECT TO THESE MATERIALS OR ANY OTHER INFORMATION PROVIDED TO THE STUDENT. ANY SIMILARITIES BETWEEN FICTICIOUS COMPANIES, THEIR DOMAIN NAMES, OR PERSONS WITH REAL COMPANIES OR PERSONS IS PURELY COINCIDENTAL AND IS NOT INTENDED TO PROMOTE, ENDORSE OR REFER TO SUCH EXISTING COMPANIES OR PERSONS.

If you have any questions, comments, or recommendations about this course, please go to <u>https://theTechMentors.com/Contact</u>.

Table of Contents

Tabl	e of Contents	. i
1.	Introduction A: What is Power BI? B: What can you do with Power BI? C: What are the different versions of Power BI?	1 . 2 . 4 . 5
2.	Get Data and Create a Report. A: What is Data Source? B: Connect to an Excel data source C: Describe the features of the Power BI Desktop screen D: Create a simple Stacked bar chart. E: Save your work. F: Close a report. G: Connect to a CSV data source H: Create a simple Line chart I: Connect to a Access database J: Connect to a server-based data source K: Connect to a web-based data source L: Open your work	6 .7 .9 12 13 15 16 17 20 22 26 30 33
3.	Prepare Data for Modeling	35 36 37 38 40 41 42 43 44 45 46 48 50 51

	O: Manipulate / correct numeric date and time data	52
	P: Manipulate / correct numeric data with math	53
	Q: Practice	54
4.	Create the Data Model	55
	A: Append records from one source to another	56
	B: Merge columns from multiple sources	58
	C: Hide a table from a report	61
	D: List the different join types	62
	E: Join data from different tables	64
	F: Edit the model	68
5	Croate Visualizations and Penarts	60
J.	A: Define "Visualization"	70
	R: Define "Report"	70
	C: List various types of visualizations	71
	D: Create a visualization	74
	E: Format a visualization	76
	F: Add more pages to a report	
	G: Add more visualizations	80
	H: Filter a page or report	83
	I: Define Slicer	87
	J: Create a Slicer	88
	K: Practice	91
6.	Create Dashboards	
0.	A: Define "Dashboard"	93
	B: Publish a report to the Power BI Service	94
	C: Create a dashboard	95
	D: Share a dashboard with others	
-		00
1.	Practice Lab	98
	A: Bar charts, Tables and Slicers	
	B: Column charts	103
	C: Line charts	105
	D: Area charts	107
	E: Scatter charts	109
		110
	G: watertall charts	112
	п. ries, Donuts, Treemaps and Cards	113 115
	I. FUNITIEIS	113

J: Maps	116
K: Q&A	120
Appendix A: Installing Power BI Desktop	122
Appendix B: Additional Resources	124

1. Introduction

Unit time: 30 minutes

Complete this unit and you will be able to answer the following questions:

- A. What is Power BI?
- B. What can you do with Power BI?
- C. What are the different versions of Power BI?
- D. How do you Start Power BI Desktop?

A: What is Power BI?

Explanation: Power BI is both a set of analytical tools and a cloud-based business analytics service from Microsoft. The "BI" stands for business intelligence. With Power BI you can turn raw data into business intelligence that gives your organization actionable insights for making informed decisions.

Power BI includes the following components:

Power BI service

A web-based online service that allows organizations to share and manipulate business intelligence in the form of reports and interactive dashboards.

Power BI Desktop

A free windows-based desktop application that is used to model and transform data and create business intelligence reports that are published to the Power BI Service.

Power BI Mobile Apps

Apps for mobile devices (Android, iOS, and Windows based phones and tablets) for viewing, manipulating, annotating, and sharing Power BI reports and dashboards.

Power BI Gateway

Software that allows Power BI to access and refresh data that is kept in an on-premises data source such as a local SQL Server database.

Power BI Report Server

An on-premises server-based Power BI Reporting solution for organizations that need or desire to not store their data in the cloud-based Power BI Service.

Power BI Visuals Marketplace

A marketplace where you can get add-on visuals for Power BI, some have a fee, and some are free.

Additional reading:

For more information about the various components of Power BI check out these online resources.

- Information and sign-up options for Power BI <u>https://powerbi.microsoft.com/en-us/</u>
- Wikipedia's article on Microsoft Power BI
 <u>https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Microsoft_Power_BI</u>
- Differences Between Power BI Pro vs Power BI Fee vs Power BI Premium
 <u>https://dynamics.folio3.com/blog/difference-between-power-bi-pro-vs-free-vs-premium/</u>

Exercise: Power BI Components

Based on the information above, match the component below with its definition:

Component	Definition
A. Power BI Service	1 An on-premises server-based reporting solution for organizations that need or desire to not store their data in the cloud-based Power BI Service.
C. Power BI Mobile Apps	2 A free windows-based desktop application that is used to model and transform data and create business intelligence reports that are published to the Power BI Service
D. Power BI Gateway	3 Smart phone and tablet-based applications for viewing, manipulating, annotating, and sharing Power BI reports and dashboards.
E. Power BI Report Server	4 Software that allows Power BI to access and refresh data that is kept in an on-premises data source such as a local SQL Server database.
F. Power BI Visuals Marketplace	5 A place where you can get add-on visuals for Power BI, some have a fee, and some are free.
	6 A web-based online service that allows organizations to share and manipulate business intelligence in the form of reports and interactive dashboards.

B: What can you do with Power BI?

Explanation: Power BI lets you do many things to manipulate and visualize your data, including the following:

- Pull data in from multiple sources including SAP, Oracle, SQL Server, Microsoft Access, Microsoft Excel, Websites, and more.
- Easily clean up data with the query editor
- Create visualizations of your data
- Combine multiple visualizations into a report
- Enhance the reports to create interactive dashboards
- Share the reports and dashboards on different devices (desktops, tablets, and smart phones)
- Use Quick Insights to make use of Artificial Intelligence to auto generate visualizations

C: What are the different versions of Power BI?

Explanation: Power BI has three versions which are explained below.

Power BI Free / Desktop

Power BI Free is the Power BI Desktop window application without the Power BI Service. This gives users the ability to connect to multiple data sources, analyze the data, and create visualizations and reports. The reports can then be shared indirectly by exporting the report to a PDF which is then shared on a server or via email. Because it lacks the Power BI Service, cloud-based sharing is not possible until a paid version is acquired.

Power BI Pro

Power BI Pro is the free Power BI Desktop plus a monthly subscription to the Power BI Service. This essentially gives users the full version of Power BI. Users can create visualizations, reports, and dashboards that can be shared with other users who also have a Power BI Service subscription.

The Power BI Pro subscription costs \$9.99 per user per month. Microsoft does have a free 60-day trial. For more information see <u>https://powerbi.microsoft.com/en-us/pricing/</u>.

Power BI Premium

Power BI Premium is an alternative to Power BI Pro that includes all the features of Power BI Pro plus enterprise-oriented features for AI, data management and big data.

Power BI Premium can be purchased for \$20 per user per month, or for \$4,995 per capacity per month. For more details go to <u>https://powerbi.microsoft.com/en-us/pricing/</u>.

2. Get Data and Create a Report

Unit time: 90 minutes

Complete this unit and you will be able to:

- A. Define "data source"
- B. Connect to an Excel data source
- C. Describe the features of the Power BI Desktop screen
- D. Create a simple Stacked bar chart
- E. Save your work
- F. Close a report
- G. Connect to a CSV data source
- H. Create a simple Line chart
- I. Connect to an Access database
- J. Connect to a server-based database
- K. Connect to a web-based data source
- L. Open your work

A: What is Data Source?

Explanation: As its name implies, a data source is a source of data. Any data from which Power BI can create a visualization is a data source. The data source can be a database, an Excel file, a text file, a folder on your server, or even information on Facebook. For more information see <u>https://docs.microsoft.com/en-us/power-bi/connect-data/desktop-datasources</u>.

> Microsoft's Power BI team continues to expand the data sources available to Power BI Desktop and the Power BI service. For a complete list of data sources available to Power BI go to <u>https://docs.microsoft.com/en-us/power-bi/connect-data/power-bi-datasources</u>.

To connect to a data source, select **File**, **Get Data** and choose a one of the most common data source categories, and then follow the prompts to select your data source.



You can also select a data source from the ribbon. From the **Home** tab, select **Get data**, and then choose your desired category, and then follow the prompts as needed.

Clohneti	2 Data	Queles Inset
H.	-	1
8	Get Data	
8	Search	All
	All	🔹 Escel Workbook
	File	Text/CSV
	Database	🖻 XML
	Power Platform	JSON
	Azure	Eolder Folder
	Online Services	E PDF
	Other	Parquet
		SharePoint folder
		5QL Server database
		Access database
		SQL Server Analysis Services database
		Oracle database
		EM Db2 database
		IBM Informix database (Beta)
		IBM Netezza
		MySQL database

B: Connect to an Excel data source

In the following exercise you will open and examine the contents of an Excel file that lists multiple 20th century movies. You will then close it, and load it into Power BI, and then create a simple Stacked Bar Chart.

- 1. **Start Excel** and **open** the **Movies.xlsx** file from the exercise folder.
- Look at the three sheets, and their contents. Notice the following:
 - Lots of Movies has a list of 5406 movies that starts in cell A1.
 - 100 Movies has list of 100 movies that starts in cell B2.
 - Supporting Lists has 4 distinct lists, each separated by a column.
- From the ribbon select Formulas, Defined Names, Name Manager. The name manager is an Excel feature that lets users create a name for a cell or group of cells.

Notice the names and their references. The user set the **MovieList** and **MovieListSmall** to refer to a movie list and their column headings from one of the two movie sheets.

Notice the user set the other named ranges, like **Category**, to refer to a block of data that starts at row 2, thus not including the column headings.

Name Manager					?	×
<u>N</u> ew <u>E</u>	dit <u>D</u> elete				<u>F</u> ilte	r•
Name Category Color MovieList MoviesListSmall Rating Year	Value {"Action"; "Adventur {"In Color"; "Black a {"ID", "Title", "Year", " {"ID", "Title", "Year", " {"ID", "Title", "Year", " {"R"; "G"; "PG"; "PG-13 {"1925"; "1951"; "195	Refers To ='Supporting Lists'!SC\$2:SC\$29 ='Supporting Lists'!SG\$2:SG\$3 ='Lots of Movies'!SA\$1:SF\$5407 ='100 Movies'!SB\$2:SG\$5408 ='Supporting Lists'!SE\$2:SE\$7 ='Supporting Lists'!SA\$2:SA\$34	Scope Workbo Workbo Workbo Workbo Workbo	Comment		
Refers to:	ing Lists'!\$C\$2:\$C\$29				Clos	<u>↑</u>

- 4. Close Excel.
- 5. Start the **Power BI Desktop** application.

6. If the startup screen is displayed, click the X in the top right corner to close it.



7. From the ribbon's **Home** tab, select **Get data**, choose **Excel Workbook**, and then select the **Movies.xlsx** file from the Exercise folder and click **Open**.

	P.	100 N	(ovies						- 3E
Nullay Options *	13	-10	1846	304		Category.	Autog	Codos.	
• 10 Manhamaturi (1)			1 Millionerg		1813	r bane		# Galer	1.4
- Dill 100 tituan			3 51,000,000 Thank		1971	Conada	<u>6</u>	In Color	1
FIEL Laboration of Street			8/18		197	Dines.	1	In Dyner	
LI LI LIG A MOVES			+ 10 linington Finan		1070	0 ine	19	to Linke	
CT (C) is obtained true			2 100 MPau		196	Wetterh.	16	NONE	
D BE Contay			# 11 Performent		1000	P P me	11	b Siller	
DE Car			F 1490 Carguett of Parados		1981	Data	14-15	N Lobe	
Diff. Monalist			# 10 Step of Sters		1398	Decamentary	- E (H Color	
CI MI Manual at Small			9.1776		164	PRODUCT .		to Dyna	
The fating			10'18 Again		100	Deale	14	is Lour	
			11.1900		1800	Dees.	MC-UT	In Color	
DELVER	-		15 1941	-	200	Corinte	PI	ie Cotor	
	-		Il an.	1.2.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1	15/8	Transfer	10	and a second	
			AF 3 Wanter		DIV.	Date:	ini .	to Later	1.18

8. In the navigator screen notice the list of items.

Notice each item has a checkbox, an icon, and a name. The name comes from either a sheet name or a named range.

Notice the icon for the sheets is different than the icon for the named ranges.

Notice you can click on the name of the item, without checking its check box.

Notice a preview of data is displayed when you click on an item's name or check its check box.

- 9. Click on the name of the **100 movies** sheet, and notice, the preview does not show a blank row 1, nor a blank column A. Instead, it is based on the data that started in cell B2.
- 10. Click on the name of the **Supporting Lists** sheet and notice the blank cells are filled in with the italicized word "*null*", and the blank columns have a column heading starting with the word "Column".

- 11. Click on the name of the **Category** named range and notice the column heading is "Column1". It is named Column1 because the user did not include column headings in the named range.
- 12. Make sure all the check boxes are unchecked, then check the box for the Lots of Movies sheet.
- 13 Next click the **Load** button.

Congratulations, you have loaded some Excel data into Power BI.

C: Describe the features of the Power BI Desktop screen

🗄 🧐 💎 Untitled - Power Bl Desitiop 🛛 🔎 St	arch		teriter	• - • >	×
File Home Insert Modeling View Help					
A tra C Rome A tra C Ger board A Sold Data Datasets deta - worktool datasets Serier data	Recent Jundom Refeat Visial	Text Nove hox visuals- mat	Second State		^
M A		🖓 Filters 🕞 🔹 🗡	Visualization CO >	Fields	>
un 🕒		,O Search		P Search	3
Build mousts with your data Dead or may tests from the Neth your state	EDT CAVIEL	Fétars on this page) III Lats of Movies	
- <u>17</u>		Filters on all pages			
		Add state fields here			
D			Add data fields here		
Fage 1 gg			Drill through Cost-report Of Q Keep al fitters On Add drill-through fields here		
Pige 7 of 1					

Using the shot above, find the following parts of the screen on the Power BI Desktop. For example, icon A is the Report View.

	Expand icon
	Fields pane
	Filters pane
	Report Canvas
	Model View
	Pages
А	Report View
	Ribbon
	Table View
	Visualizations pane

D: Create a simple Stacked bar chart

In the following exercise you will create a simple visualization from the Excel List of Movies you connected to in the previous exercise - **Connect to an Excel data source**.

- 1. **Expand** the **Lots of Movies** table.
- 2. In the **Visualizations** pane, click the **Stacked Bar Chart** icon.
- 3. Drag the **Category** field to the **Y-axis** field well.
- 4. Drag the **ID** field to **X-Axis** field well.

5. In the **Visualizations** pane, click the Format icon 📝.

- 6. In the **Visualizations** pane, click the **Data labels** option to display data labels.
- 7. In the Visualizations pane, click General then the expand button > for the Title, then change the Title text to "Count Movies by Category".

Visualizations Format visual	>>
🗏 🗗 🔍	e
P Search	
Visual General	
> Properties	
✓ Title	Ð
Text	
Count Movies by Category	fx
Heading	
Heading 3	~
Font	
DN V	14 C
BIU	
Text color	
fx	
Background color fx	
Horizontal alignment	
Text wrap	œ
Reset to default	



8. In the report **Canvas**, drag one or more of the **size handles** to resize the report.

E: Save your work

When you save your work, your report will be saved as a Power BI file, which has a **pbix** extension. Like most Microsoft programs, Power BI gives you many ways to save your work including the following:

- Select File, Save as, choose your desired folder, and enter a file name.
- Select File, Save.
- Press Ctrl S.
- Click the **Save** icon at the top left of the screen.

Once the file has been saved, the file name will appear in the title bar of the application.

Exercise: Save the Count by Category report

- 1. Press Ctrl S or any of the other methods shown above to save the file.
- 2. When prompted, point to the exercise folder, and enter **Count Movies by Category** as the filename.

F: Close a report

Unlike other programs, **Power BI does not have an option on the file menu for closing a report**. Instead, one simply clicks the X in the top right corner of the application. The system will prompt you to save your work if it has not been saved since the last change.



G: Connect to a CSV data source

In the following exercise you will open and examine the contents of a CSV file showing the daily cost of natural gas prices since January 1, 1997. You will then close it, and then use Power BI to create a simple graph.

What is a CSV file?

CSV stands for Comma Separated Values. In a CSV file, fields are separated by commas, and records are separated by carriage returns.

CSV files can easily be viewed by multiple programs including Notepad, Notepad++, Microsoft Excel, and of course Microsoft Power BI.

- 1. Open your exercise folder.
- 2. Right click on the Natural Gas Prices.csv file.

3. Select **Open with**, and then choose **Notepad**.

Name.	0	Date modifi	ed	Type	Size
Movies.xtsx		6/10/20211	0:22 AM	Microsoft Excel Worksh-	416.KB
Xtreme Bicycles.n	ndb	8/10/2021 5	45 PM	Microsoft Access Datab	11,840 KB
Natural Gas Price	Open Print Edit Share with Skype		D AM	Microsoft Excel Comme	366 KB
	Share Open with Adobe Drive CS4 Send to	>	Excel		
	Cut Copy		Search the Choose and	Microsoft Store other app	
	Create shortcut Delete Rename Properties				

In a moment you should see the CSV data in Notepad.

Natural Gas Prices.cov - Notepad			x
File Edit Format View Help			
Date,Price			
1997-01-07, 3.819999999999999984012788445397745817899	703979492	1875	- 10
1997-01-08, 3. 79999999999999982236431605997495353221	893310546	875	
1997-01-09, 3.609999999999999987565502124198246747255	325317382	8125	
1997-01-10,3.919999999999999992894572642398998141288	757324218	75	
1997-01-13,4			
1997-01-14,4.0099999999999999978683717927196994423866	271972656	25	
1997-01-15,4.33999999999999985789145284797996282577	514648437	5	
1997-01-16,4.70999999999999996447286321199499070644	378662109	375	
1997-01-17, 3, 91000000000000014210854715202003717422	485351562	5	
1997-01-20, 3. 259999999999999978683717927196994423866	271972656	25	
21,2,9900 2902131620 25576133	The	15	

- 4. Close Notepad.
- 5. Start the **Power BI Desktop** application.
- 6. If the startup screen is displayed, click the X in the top right corner to close it.
- 7. From the ribbon's **Home** tab, select **Get data**, select the **Text/CSV** option, and click **Connect**.

Get Data		×
Search	All	
All	X Excel Workbook	^
File	Text/CSV	
Database	TWIL XML	
Power Platform	IN NOZE N	
	Folde _za	
	MySQL database	
	PostgreSQL database	~
Certified Connectors Template	e Apps Connect Cancel	

8. Choose the Natural Gas Prices.csv file from the Exercise folder and click Open.

Notice a different navigator screen is presented with a preview of the data and options for File Origin, Delimiter, and Data Type Detection.

la Origin			Defeviter		Data Type Detection		
1252: Wet	ten Luca	aram (Windows) -+	Comma	1	Based on first 200 rows	1.61	0
Onte	Price -						12
1/9/1007	2.82						- 0
2/8/1997	2.8						
1/9/1997	2.61						
/10/1907	5.92						
/13/1997	- 4						
/14/1997	4.01						
/25/22007	4.34						
/26/1997	4.71						
/17/1997	8.92						
(20/1997	2.28						4
11111007	1.94						

File Origin is useful if you need to tell the computer the data has characters from Japan or some other country.

Delimiter lets you identify the character that separates fields. In a CSV file the delimiter is a comma. In other files it might be an equal sign, semicolon, space, tab, or some other character. If so, you would click the drop down and choose the appropriate delimiter.

Data Type Detection lets you direct Power BI how much data it should scan to determine if a field is a number, date, or text field.

9. In the navigator click the **Load** button.

Congratulations, you have loaded CSV data into Power BI.

H: Create a simple Line chart

In the following exercise you will create a simple line chart based on the Natural Gas Prices CSV file you imported in the last exercise.

- 1. **Expand** the **Natural Gas Prices** table.
- 2. In the **Visualizations** pane, click the **Line Chart** icon.
- 3. Drag the **Date** field to the **X-Axis** field well.
- 4. Drag the **Price** field to **Y-Axis** field well.



- 5. Resize the visualization as desired.
- Move the mouse over different parts of the graph.
 Notice the vertical line is displayed. If you pause moving the mouse, a tool tip displays the selected year and its price.

- Click the down arrow to activate the drill down mode. Notice the arrow is now in a circle.
- Click anywhere on any data point on the graph.
 Notice the chart "drills down" to show a deeper level of detail.

If the chart does not drill down try clicking the up arrow a few times to drill up, and then click a data point to drill down.

9. Click the drill up arrow \uparrow and notice the chart returns to the previous level of detail.



- 10. Save your report as Natural Gas Prices.
- 11. Click the X in the corner to close **Power BI**.

I: Connect to an Access database

In the following exercise you will open and examine the contents of an Access Database file that contains sales information for a Bicycle Manufacturing company. You will then close it, and then use Power BI to connect to it.

1. Start **Microsoft Access** and open the **Xtreme Bicycles.mdb** file from the exercise folder.

The database displays an Access form that displays information about an order including the order ID, order date, sales rep, required date, ship date, customer name and address information, and the items on the order. All this information is coming from multiple database tables.

order	s × ders								
Cu Mi 41: Su Ste 810	stomer Cyclist's T ss Alexa Quarterm 22 Panorama Place ite 2807 erling Heights, MI 4 0-939-0489	rail Co. aine 18320	~		Order I Order I Employ Require Ship Da Ship Vi	D Date yee ID ed Date ate a	1 12/2/20 Davolic 12/15/2 12/10/2 UPS	003 5, Nancy 2003 2003 5:32:23 PN	× 1
	P	roduct		- Unit P	rice 👻	Quant	ity 👻	Ext Price 🕞	
	Active Outdoors	Crochet G	ove xsm		\$14.50		3	\$43.50	
	Active Outdoors (Crochet G	love med	1	\$14.50		2	\$29.00	
	Active Outdoors (Crochet G	love Irg		\$14.50		1	\$14.50	
	Active Outdoors I	Lycra Glov	e xsm		\$16.50		3	\$49.50	
	Active Outdoors I	ycra Glov	e med		\$16.50		4	\$66.00	
	Triumph Pro Heln	net black	sm		\$41.90		1	\$41.90	
	Triumph Pro Heln	net white	med		\$41.90		5	\$209.50	
	Triumph Pro Heln	net black	Irg		\$41.90		2	\$83.80	
*									-
Re	ecord: I4 4 2 of 8	▶ ▶ ▶*	No Filter	Search					
						S	ubtotal	\$537	.70

2. Press F11 to display the Access Navigation Pane.

As you scroll down the Navigation Pane you will see a list of tables, then queries, forms, reports, macros and modules. The tables hold all the data. The queries extract data from the tables. The other objects make inserting, editing, deleting and viewing data easier, but the data is actually stored in the tables. 3. From the ribbon, select **Database Tools**, **Relationships**, **Relationships**. This displays an entity relationship diagram – a diagram that shows how the information in one table is related to information in another table.



As you follow the lines you can see that information in one table is related to information in another table via a key field. For example, the Customer and Orders table are related via the Customer ID field. Knowing how the tables relate to each other is necessary for creating multi-table reports.

- 4. Close Microsoft Access.
- 5. Start the **Power BI Desktop** application.
- 6. If the startup screen is displayed, click the X in the top right corner to close it.
- 7. From the Home tab, select Get data, choose More.
- 8. Select the **Database** category on the left, then choose **Access database** and click **Connect**.



- **9.** From the exercise folder choose the **Xtreme Bicycles.mdb** file from the Exercise folder and click **Open**.
- 10. In the navigator screen, notice the list of items.

	4	to Custon	107					T.
uplay Dotion: -	D-	latatest.	CaleverGroßth	Taxiamentame	Sumardividitions.	Toola Galifian	turatita-	InterPolice
(1) There Bayries and (17)			1	1 Dy Letters	Own	Orbitamari	10.	Sales Hearinger
D D colem			1	2.Petrinine	Otomy	Addingg	what .	later Reconstration
			A.	J. Breed-Intellige Attractive Private	dary.	Mental .	38	Tares Associate
Li la so-carri			(*)	v Autocyte	Xecunity	AMAN	38	Sales Pagewoorkstrative
CI EL Holizza (Class			(K)	A Sporting disease out	79418	(heyes)	3m .	Sizes Associate
CI III IBAccountriatelong			*	# Residences for India.	ineriter .	2948	34.	2001200000000000
C C HARDWARD				P.Peer-Lycin	Are	3440	34	Toles Agent
0.0 ++++				Flavie: Willettild.	Traine .	Dent	2001	Sets Rentatives
COTT AND AND ADDRESS OF			×	B' Post Baser's Pilon	Assessed	3479	1001	Owner.
CORT AND A			10	20 Annels Area Company	Wettets	29centaiei	- De	Series Agente
La las respecter			#E U	di Deas Air Teinigemener bi:		Safet	100	lates Autocare
C D D D Callenger			10	LP maked uniterals	ments .	Wyda	1.100	Date:
C R thCataranPayment			AR	22-2-6419 Carls Response	10x234	Balai.	1.00	2444
C D thirsbyer			14	10 May 121 Cycles	948	Pull		Date
DE things, with more			約	13 The Bie Delai	2010/04/07/07	24 mme	- 100	Sales MArager
DE mineral			10	10 Percent House River	10000	14/2011	-	Ower Manager
TO BE AN			19	37 White keyse	1418	Deaths	100	Owner
FT FE IR-sverank			18	M Biss and Titles		BARY .		Denter
CI ED StillowilloyPathase				JF Danging Wears	Oadd	(Date)	- 10	Sales Agent
The thirty status				JO: Wrenk and Mult	Chart -	(Contractor)	-100	Tanks Agent.
E III this entry bet			#	31 Ne-CRM	Carter	Devidence	100.	Steel Manager
C T taleverta / anadore	14		10	32 Date Careports	Last -	WOMAN.	1846.6	Tates Representative +
PLET and a second second second	~	<		TT: Promos Bigs Parks	- The a			2

Notice that, like with Excel, each item has a check box, an icon, and a name.

The name is the name of either a table or query.

Notice the query icon is different than the icon for the tables.

Notice the forms, reports, macros, and modules are not listed.

Notice that, like with Excel, when you click on an item's name, or check its check box, a preview of its data is displayed.

- 11. Check the following tables:
 - tblCustomer
 - tblOrders
 - tblOrderDetail
 - tblProduct
- 12. Click Load.

Congratulations, you have loaded some Access data into Power BI.

13. Save your results as **Data from a Microsoft Access Database**, then close Power BI.

J: Connect to a server-based database

Server-based databases are more robust and complex than Access databases. Like Access, server-based databases have **tables**, and they have queries, which in a server-based database are called **views**.

Connecting to a server-based database requires the user to have access permissions to both 1) the database server, which may be in the cloud or on your local network, and 2) the desired database. You can get such permissions from your database administrator.

In this exercise you will see how to connect to a **SQL Server database** named **AdventureWorks2014** and then you will load three tables.

- 1. Start the **Power BI Desktop** application.
- 2. If the startup screen is displayed, click the X in the top right corner to close it.
- 3. From the **Home** tab, select **Get data**.
- Select the Database category on the left.
 Notice multiple types of databases are available.



- Choose SQL Server database and click Connect.
 Notice the SQL Server database connection screen is displayed.
- 6. Enter the authentication information as shown below:

SOL Server database	
Server ()	
LocalHost	
Database (optional)	
AdventureWorks2014	
Data Connectivity mode ①	
O Import	
• DirectQuery	
▷ Advanced options	
	OK Cancel

Server:

The server is the name of your SQL Server. When the computer you are using has its own "developer edition" instance of SQL Server then you can simply the name **LocalHost**. However, in most real-world situations your PC will not have a local instance and therefore you will need to get the name of the server from your database administrator.

Database:

This option is for the name of the database. You can get it from your database administrator.

Data Connectivity Mode:

The **Import** option lets you store the data from the database in your report. This may make your report faster and will allow you to build the report when you are disconnected from the network. The downside is new and/or modified data on the server will not be reflected in your report until you refresh the data.

The **DirectQuery** option will not import the data, but instead will requery the database every time your report is run. Depending on the speed of your connection to the database, this may slow down your reports. The upside is your report will reflect current, up to the minute, data when it is run, and the size of your Power BI file will be smaller.

7. Click OK.

In the navigator notice there are many items.

8. Select the first item, HumanResources.vEmployee.

The icon identifies this as a view. The preview shows it includes many columns which come from multiple tables.

	æ	HumanRootx	icits (E)	vployee.						
ana Taman 1	0.	a montained	i ite	Matter	Walking	options.	inter.	set the	Postatio	Ē
Localment Advancembrance(114) (22)	1.1		28	mul airea	A	Algorith		and takes have not station	1001 AAN 01101	
THE CONTRACTOR DOLLARS	- 2		200	out Menuet	(#) ¹	Autor: 1		and hele frequencies.	201310-0.03	
rim -	_		116	And Section		ing .		that them more use into Address	1348-335-3187	
			275.50	- (H-1)	8.1	10(0.00		not the Resident of Seal	(110-888-011)	
[1] [1] Puters there, consisting and a part of a AVA			8W	and Januaria	Strength Lineburg	hare .		real Approxime Specialist	1012-005-0039	
C Tobal Parameter (1) Carolinate	- 22		ptt;	42.28	8.	where .		our targenesi berneritette	1011000-004	
🗆 🛅 Horne Annuel and Casting of Austrice			60	aut forg	N	791		out faith to and been the	348.555-5244	
O Presentation and a statistic framework			21	out manue	<i>k</i>	Melitard		mit Saids Insurvive Manager	1008-000-02279	
TTA Barrowshitten Constant			208	nul bronze	N.	Straight		real Production Technical (MUR)	1229-888-8538	
			200	nul later	F	Page 1		and Personan Services 19525	Jan Maria II	
C C La La construction of the second se			298	and here	*	0.00		and Promotion Sciencian. (404).	301303-008	
C Kod-Can Post Multi Acciptur			285	00.016	±1;	Addressed -		red from the tensor with	1112-335-0274	
The trade time of the table to be an a first state of the second s			18	Heltsurt		10000		and Procents for the Intelligence Intelligen	412-555-02.00	
🗆 🛅 huduran ikasumkaalimistoo			100	101.110	(*)	1876		eyl Prosenter Santasan - Rott.	100103-029	
CIPS Productor Company Statistics			/mt	out take	*	Address		out Name and Address of the	1000 848 3010	
			205	out two	14 C	Man		nel Nonenel Nchiman 19585	1000 AAA-02210	
			-265	mil Teams	14	Suleir-		mail Production Statescale - MCR2	1000-000-02227	
T C President and and and and a second			-791	nul bran	S.	street .		out Protuining Statestian (MCA2)	1222-545-51883	
El 🖰 Seec-Annual Annual Annua			294	and William		1004		and Meeting Appliers	346-555-6545	
C C Astern clashes/hereart			124	out here.	1.	2400		our turning kolders	360-553-6129	
The second description of the second se			200	044.52		- MINET		and Malair Sthake	101.001-0254	
THE ALL IN COMPANY			123	942.1269	A	Burtal		Head Assembly Mean Table	311100-0226	

- Scroll down and select the HumanResources.Employee item. The icon identifies this as a table. The preview shows it includes many fields which come from the HumanResources.Employee table.
- 10. Check the boxes for **Sales.SalesOrderDetail** table.

11. Click the **Select Related Tables** button.

Notice the Sales.SalesOrderHeader, and Sales.SpecialOfferProduct tables have been selected.

		م م
Display Opt	tions *	D
	Sales.Customer	
	Sales.PersonCreditCard	
20	Sales.SalesOrderDetail	
× 🗉	Sales.SalesOrderHeader	
	Sales Sales Order Header Sales Reason	
	Sales Sales Person	
	Sales-SalesPersonQuotaHotory	
	Sales.SalesReason	1
	Sales-SalesTaxRate	
	Sales.SalesTerritory	
	Sales.SalesTerritoryHistory	
	Sales.ShoppingCartItem	
	Sales-SpecialOffer	
M 100	Sales.SpecialOfferProduct	
	Sales.Store	

12. Click Load.

Notice the three tables are displayed in the Fields Pane.

 > I Sales SalesOrderDetail > I Sales SalesOrderHeader > I Sales SpecialOfferProduct 	

13. Save your result in the exercise folder as **Adventure Works Sales**, then close Power BI.

K: Connect to a web-based data source

In the following exercise you will open and examine data that is contained on a webpage. Specifically, you will get a table from a Wikipedia page listing US States and their Gross Domestic Product.

- 1. Open your browser and go to Wikipedia.org.
- 2. In the search bar enter List of US States by GDP.
- 3. From the drop down choose the List of states and territories of the United States by GDP option.



https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/List of states and territories of the United States by GDP

4. Scroll down the page and notice the list which we will import into Power BI.

1. Av	i fol berge. The annual non- een throw peaks, and adart four the table teaching car	ten GSP staa te GOP per og	ch posta pendit plia yn wardt U pen ⁷⁸⁶	No Depend of	Columnia (n here 2020 and of Columbia in 1	in Biziji Rzi. Trait	ator, a r s.otuty	And and	te SDP da
The l	COP data below is means COP data halow does not not COP except provide or	rad in rollions reflect the sec ate for \$4 200	of U.S. deal	and percent of 2000 GGP to	Cif per car risch, hat n	rite data, which ther the prove	i farfadis (th	ent roemal e real SIDA	fyl (privetter)	nde ophere
		Roma d Carry (rdl) U.S. or	nt 190# nt Prices was of stars()	Armut SD at Ourse	P Draman	free 30P Growth Tame Jammel] (S4 500-	at# pr	r sayata	3.44	iellorei 1
	State or desired	1001	3000	10001-1	1011	G1 3001) ¹¹	3021	1416	100	3124
					٠					
Ŧ	College Live	\$1,127,398	\$2,788,798	La Altime	41494	# 5.25	\$P1.070	400,402	16.77%	14.02%
	An Date over	81,079,100	\$1,213,504		. 1.171		394472	80.112	6415	4.00%
1	arm bleer bert. jennet	\$1,790,011	107824	* -311,100	• 112%	a 5.3%	\$67,000	391,410	1.12%	8.27%
1224	and the second se	1	and the second se	- 10 Del.	-	-	810.440	-Description		Concernance.

- 5. Copy the web address from the browser's address bar.
- 6. Start the **Power BI Desktop** application.
- 7. If the startup screen is displayed, click the X in the top right corner to close it.
- 8. From the **Home** tab, select **Get data**, choose **Other** then choose **Web** and click **Connect**.
- 9. Paste (CTRL V) the web address in the URL box and click **OK**.



- 10. In the Navigator check the **Table 1** table. Notice the preview displays the table of states and their GDP.
- 11. Click Load.

Notice it may take a moment to download the data to Power BI.

After it is loaded, expand the table, and notice the field names are not very user friendly. We will fix this in the next chapter.


12. On the left side of the screen click the **Table View** \blacksquare icon.

Notice this shows you the data in the table.

		lighte	I - News III Smith		P Swith			Sai			
14	Harve	tte/p	Table tools	-							
1	Traine States		and a con-	Henry 	New Call	3 Name Name ore columber table					
14	XV								Fields		12
=	Superior district	have or dealer . 🕐 Handled Stiffer Sarrow Histogradians of				heard of the Garoon of	Veranities atta admin[3][*] 200	Assuel (AP Designal Lattice Prive (2017)	PSee	01	
47	Carbon a Imure				3,121104		4109704		1 million	weet	
	Search Lands				1476782						
	New York (House)				1100011		1776/40				10
	Planta (more)				115380		3121307				- Ob
	Discussion (shore)				303487		881087				
	Perceptants (rece	0			. 823127		6049U7				
	Child Shides				714807		696239				
	Groups intents				85.5858		833345				
-	Ten Joon Marry	_	-	-	10,000	_	personal and a second s		-		-

13. Save your result in the exercise folder as **GDP data from the web**, then close Power BI.

We will return to this file in the next chapter.

L: Open your work

Like most programs, Power BI lets you open previous files, and it keeps track of your most recently saved files.

How to open a report

- 1. Select the **File** menu and choose **Open report**.
- 2. Either click a report from the recent report list, or click the **Browse reports** button and select the report you want to open.

🕞 Browse repo	orts
E Browse repo	orts
ned	
	-12
-	-(2
-	-6
	100 apr

3. Prepare Data for Modeling

Unit time: 90 minutes

Complete this unit and you will be able to:

- A. Define "data modeling"
- B. Rename tables and fields
- C. Remove columns
- D. Undo an action in the Power Query Editor
- E. Remove unwanted rows
- F. Manipulate / correct textual data
- G. Rearrange columns
- H. Apply changes made in the Power Query Editor
- I. Identify rows as column headings
- J. Define "data type"
- K. Change a column's data type
- L. Add columns
- M. Unpivot data
- N. Split a column into multiple columns
- O. Manipulate / correct numeric date and time data
- P. Manipulate / correct numeric data with math
- Q. Complete a practice exercise

A: Define "data modeling"

As you have seen, Power BI lets you connect to multiple data sources. Sometimes the data is not set up the way you wish. For example, when we imported data from the web we saw that the table name and field names were less than useful. **Data Modeling** is the process by which you manipulate and connect data so it can be more useful.

In this chapter you will learn how to use Power BI and the Power Query Editor to manipulate individual tables and fields. In the next chapter you will learn how to complete the data model by connecting, merging and joining data from different tables.

Power Query and the Power Query Editor

Microsoft Excel, Microsoft Power BI, and other Microsoft products come with a data transformation and data preparation engine called Power Query. This engine comes with a graphical interface, and an editor that allows users to Extract, Transform, and Load (ETL) data. For more information see <u>https://docs.microsoft.com/en-us/power-query/power-query-what-is-power-query</u>.

As you will soon see, you can open the Power Query Editor by right clicking on a table and choosing Edit Query.

Fields	>
✓ Search	
∨⊞ GDP Da	New measure
	New column
	New quick measure
	Refresh data
	Edit query
	Manage relationships
	Incremental refresh
	Manage aggregations
	Copy Table
	Rename
	Delete from model
	Hide in report view
	Unhide all
	Collapse all
	Expand all

B: Rename tables and fields

In this exercise you will reopen the GDP data from the web report and rename its table and its fields.

- 1. Start the **Power BI Desktop** application and open the **GDP data from the web.pbix** report that you saved earlier.
- 2. In the Fields pane, right click on the **Table 1** table, choose **Rename**, and then enter **GDP Data** as the new name.
- 3. Expand the list of fields, then right click on the **State or federal district** field, choose **Rename**, and then enter **State** as the new name.

As shown in the next two steps, you can also rename a field in the Table View.

- 4. On the left side of the screen click the **Table View** \blacksquare icon.
- 5. Right click on the second column heading, choose **Rename**, and then enter **GDP 2022 Q3**.
- 6. Double click the name of the third column, and then enter GDP 2022 Q2.

88	× ✓					Fields >
-	State -	0092021 -	GDP2020 -	Annual GDP Changest Current Prices (2020 - 2023)[1]	Growth	0.0.0.0
m		2021	,2020		^	22 Search
100						WE COMPANY
198	California (more)	1237389	3289703	47686		 IIII GOP Data
	Texas (more)	1879785	1818394	61391		∑ % of National[1]
	New York (more)	1758071	1778240	-20169		五 hi of National(1)_4
	Rorida (more)	1121908	1121367	30241		∑ Annual GDP Change
	Illinois (more) 909487 Pennsylvenie (more) 823333		854447	25040		5 Annual GDP Change
			808957	12180		T 059 and and 1993
	Ohio (more)	ej 72350		17295		∑ one bei cabita[185]
	Georgia (more)	650838	832546	22592		T ODA bei cabita[1][3["3
	New Jersey (mare)	649829	643666	8163		2 GDP2020
	Washington (more)	651107	625121	25986		∑ GD92021
	North Carolina (more)	#19595	600631	19964		∑ Real GDP Growth Ra.,
	Massachusetts (more)	621917	600740	11177		State
	Virginia (mare)	579860	562718	17142		
	South Certaine (more).	25468	.147517	2651	, ¥	
Table:	GDP Data (54 rows) Col	iumn % of hist	onal(11_4 (52 d	Estinct values)		

C: Remove columns

The following exercise will demonstrate multiple ways to delete unneeded columns from your data model.

- 1. Right click on the fourth column and then choose **Delete**.
- 2. When prompted click the **Delete** button.



Another method for deleting columns is with the Power Query Editor.

3. Return to the Report View, then in the Fields pane, right click on the **GDP Data** table and choose **Edit Query**.

Notice the Power Query Editor opens in a new window.

Art Dave Arrived Art Name - Scone + Scone + Scone + Statistics + Stati	11	Data saure Jeffarge Data Sauren	Hange Factors Factors	Batterstein Bester		Channe Researd Condent + Condent + Histope (Univers)	Long Research	ii (h)	Beta Types Per Beta Types Per Beta Types Per Types Per T	contaige - tour ini Pite Funct	tales * Easter	The leader	e Liscereg
2.em(!) (12	A un	-	12 Marcell	E	LT GEROLE	N. Arrest	or the grather	INTERVISION OFFICE	UF T	Coley Setting	a .	×
CT ODF Cela	1		-		ant.	,A	24			132	+ PROPERTIES	£	
	1.0				$\mathbf{n}\mathbf{d}$		-			100	Name		
	1.3	Dathlancia prese	4	100	days.	1100	10			T	257.549		
		Teniki (Imare)		1.000	9.93	1918	rd .			10	all Disparts		
	3	More thank (more	0	-17	arr.	1776	ed .			1	10000000		
		Florida (mont).		- 118	ine.	1125	67			1.1	APPLIED SP	125	
	1	Statute (more)		2.18	ma#7	,884	0			12	Sports.		97.1
	1.	Perceptorial of	Right-		2417	310	17			1	istate	d Table Truny Multi-	
		DNo-Union81		.0	1005	.004	14			181	Provide	tomaget by	5.4
	60	Georgie present		6	dané .	6333	à			12	Olwige	i Town	
	11	West Jerrory Dre	100	64	9429	040	10			11	-	+Colomet .	
		Weekington pe	witi 1		1207		22			14.1	7. Benton	#Columna	
	100	Note Calvera	CRAINS .		1111					1.4			
	14	Vesservates	ominti .		1111	2007				This.			
		ingent month			1410	367							
										-			

4. Select the next two columns after the GDP2020 column, and then press **Delete** on the keyboard.

_				the second s	THE OWNER WATER OF THE OWNER OWNER OF THE OWNER		
1.000.046		100				- recently	
	1.008	197	1 gan			19979	
	1.4	101100	1160.05	1.00	1.0%	107 Dete	
	6.4		10.010	Xm /	1.010	and Programmer	
	1.0	1199/1	1110.00	Nº /	4.000		
	2.4	1123499	140700		1999	 APPERED STEPS. 	
	1.9	denar.	and a second sec	Select these two columns, then	san .	and a second sec	
	1.6	81117	And a local data	press DELETE on the seyboard	1075	Retrieting Table Coat-News	
	6.8	-ipage	09479	to delete them	1.0%	Provide A Readers	
	100	44144	421/46	to drifte utility	100	Alternative Types	
	1.12	44007	04400	108	1.00%	Renamat Columns	
		883.027	ARCA	41/8	1.22%	N Internal Column	
	1.44	and the second	MANY -	2.648	1100		
	10	10.000		144	1.005		
	1.00	(Lineager)	20110	a set	1.000		
	1.4	44330	40.00	2.00	1000		
	10	44104	41110		1000		
	2.4		44444	127			
		and a					

D: Undo an action in the Power Query Editor

The **Power Query Editor does not have the typical Undo feature** of most applications. Instead, it shows you a list of **Applied Steps** in the **Query Settings** pane. When you click on an applied step you will see the data as if that step had not been applied. If you click the next to any Applied Step, that step is undone.

Query Settings	\times
▲ PROPERTIES	
Name	
GDP Data	
All Properties	
APPLIED STEPS	
Source	-¥-
Extracted Table From Html	-#-
Promoted Headers	-¥-
Changed Type	
Renamed Columns	
➤ Removed Columns	

Practice undoing

In this exercise you will delete three columns, and then use the Applied Steps to undo the deletion.

- 1. Select the first three columns.
- 2. From the ribbon, select **Home**, **Manage Columns**, **Remove Columns**.
- 3. In the Applied Steps list, click the 📉 next to the Removed Columns item.

Notice the three recently deleted columns have been undeleted.

- 4. Again, select the first three columns: State, GDP2021, and GDP2020.
- 5. From the ribbon, select **Home**, **Manage Columns**, **Remove Columns**, **Remove Other Columns**.

Tile	Home	Transf	DI TRI	Add Column	View To	iols H	elp				
Close & Apply • Close	New Source -	Recent Sources •	Enter Data	Deta source settings Data Sources	Manage Parameters • Parameters	Refresh Preview •	Deperties	Choose Columns • Manage	Remove Columns •	Keep Remove Rows * Rows *	11 14 Split Group Column - By
Querier	r [7]		<	At State		12 6092	- 1502	13-0043030	Fem	eve Other Columns	hangent Carrent Price
E GDF	Data		1		Had	1	2021			Remove all colum	nns from this table,
			14				liun			excelt the more	why selected pries.

Notice all the columns except the first three have been deleted.

Queries [7]	- 8	曲.	AL MAR.	 12 60926 	- 12 00920	20		Query Settings	- 195
GDP Data		1		and .	2021	2020		4 PROPERTIES	
		2			- 54	fun	2	Name	
		3	California (micro)		5257589	3189/03		GDP Data	
		14	Texas (more)		1879785	1818294		All Properties	
		5	New tork (more)		1758071	1776248			
		- 8	Phanicke (mane)		1151036	1171367		 APPLIED STEPS 	
		17	Hindis (mora)		909487	\$84447		Source	8
		8	Permis/warsa (mone)		#22117	806937		Extracted Table From Html	
		- 18	Chip (mone)		713307	8962/M		Promoted Headers	- 61
		-10	Georgia tmoret		£53938	681346		Changed Type	
		.11	New Jetsey (more)		649829	841666		Renemed Columns	
		32	Weichingston (monie)		851237	625122		X Earrisved Other Columna	
		13	North Carolina (mare)		601585	153038			
		- 14	Messachusetts (more)		612937	800745			
		15	Virginia (more)		579802	582714			
		-18	Michigan (more)		542565	131153			
		:17	Maryland (more)		442858	481772			
		18	Colorado (more)		422328	110008	4		

E: Removing unwanted rows

The Power Query Editor lets you delete rows as well as columns. In the following exercise you will filter out unwanted rows / records.

- 1. Click the drop-down menu for the **State** column.
- 2. Uncheck the **(null)** value.
- 3. Uncheck the **(blank)** value.
- 4. Scroll to the bottom of the list and then uncheck the **United States*** value.
- 5. Click OK.



F: Manipulate / correct textual data

The Power Query Editor lets you manipulate and clean up the data in each column. For example, notice that each State has "*" after its name. In this exercise you will clean this up.

- 1. Select the **State** column.
- 2. From the ribbon select **Home**, **Transform**, **Replace Values**.
- 3. In the Value To Find field enter an asterisk *.
- 4. Make sure the **Replace With field** is blank.
- 5. Click on **Advanced options**.
- 6. Be sure the **Match entire contents** option is unchecked.
- 7. Click **OK**.

The * is removed.

📕 🖬 🔹 l litté data-ham pu	meth - Proval Charry Striker					
the same Datafore	Add Column View Texts	italg:				
And the constant of the consta	Table Sectors Astronger Sectors	Gary Margarian	Anna Annan Anna Annan Anna Iona	Li Angeler State (1996) (1997) Li Angeler State (1997) (1997) Li Angeler State (1997) (1997) (1997) Li Angeler State (1997) (1997) (1997) Li Angeler State (1997) (1997) (1997) (1997) Li Angeler State (1997) (1997	States of Contrast X Appret Contrast Contrast Contrast	E her anders de rane A mark former former al might
Cliettes [1] C	20 - Ji - taste-bel	artRoss(#"Remoted Dilter Lolamic", ad	wh ([State] re	mill and [State] co "" and [State] co "D	other Status **33	
TO COPUSA	E. P. Max (7)	12 soram - 12 connie				
1 c	1 Salkyrol *	NiseedL4				×
	2 Teach	1861318.5	1775581.0	Replace Values		
	3 Wey Tark *	14/519325.#	1724758-1			
	A Heida'	L2M207.5	1300025.0	Replace the value with another of the s	alethed uplgemes.	
	1 (0:0)1	83E)-C1.3	\$55.00C.0	Value Fo first		
	6 Perceptoria*	A 254.04 E	773497.0	• (3)		
	T. 1847	7 ALLEN #	attract 2	Replace Front		
	A loweger	aar, 404. J	adjust a	•	6	
	12 (Select Density *	a tanes a	stats m.r.	V		
	10 Weblegee*	647576-8	single -	+ Advenued replaces		
	11 Molt-Calebra 1	#54303.7	107579	Multilh entire cell contents		
	12 Messarhandts *	#10714.1	181410.8	Replace using special characters		
	U Wepner.	10,011	Acres 14	NAME ADDRESS OF ADDRESS OF		
	"in white a	AMPRES.F.	010110.0			
	15 Nagend *	410734.0	410874.7			
	15 University*	423543.4	382584.7			Carter 1946
	17 belana?	420329.2	175336.7			
	13 Terroret *	416294.2	389574.0			
	12 Normalia*	422000.01	173738.0			
	I Annes*	411273.8	172729			
	THE TRACTICAL	Antals a	A4711A			
accounter to scant Carson to	with a Dated on Apr. 1000 terms					

G: Rearrange columns

The Power Query Editor lets your rearrange columns. In our case we want to move the third column before the second column.

- 1. Select the third column.
- 2. Right click on the column heading and choose **Move**, Left.

1.2 GDP2020	ē	Сору		1
	۲	Remove		
		Remove Other Columns		
		Duplicate Column		
	1	Add Column From Examples		
		Remove Duplicates		
		Remove Errors		
		Change Type	F	
		Transform	+	
	1	Replace Values		
		Replace Errors		
	R	Group By		
		Fill		
		Unpivot Columns		
		Unpivot Other Columns		
		' Unpivot Only Selected Columns		
	Ē	Rename		
	<u> </u>	Move	•	l eft
		Deill Deure		Right
		Add as New Overs		To Beginning
	-2	88368		To End
	-	57699		

Note: You can also move columns by dragging and dropping them into the desired location.

H: Apply changes made in the Power Query Editor

After you have made your changes in the Power Query Editor they need to be applied as shown below.

1. In the Power Query Editor, from the ribbon choose **Home**, **Close**, **Close & Apply**.

Notice Power BI is refreshed and then shows the data from the modified data model.



2. Save your result in the exercise folder as **Modified GDP data from the web**, then close Power BI.

I: Identify rows as column headings

Sometimes Power BI misunderstands your data. For example, it can interpret your first row as column data. Notice in the screen shot below column 1 is a list of countries, and columns 2 through 13 are for months 1 through 12. Because the month numbers and the sales numbers are both numbers, Power BI assumed incorrectly that there were no column headings. In this next exercise you will fix this.

1	0 ÷	- 1 × 1	Mantry Sales pre	Course - Prese B	Switting .			P Ser	9					gin 🔍 — 🛛 🕱
Ð	E Horse 3	NO TANK N	ed)											
4	were North Sales	e a la l		I I I	Al Inc. Inc.									
1.5	14.5	30			Eastern .									10000
	Ceneral	teres	tanent -	-	-	Server T	timeted -	Denne 1	. inerest	-	inneren (*	inerett 1		Fields P
	United States	4,000	1,10,000	414796.70	inuse in	2014/04/19		174310.3	\$14795.75	1240142.79	1.1 Percent y	constant	2012/06/20	Concernsor and
198	Orm	177903 (00103300)	Armital.pt	4111330 4844696511	ITTELE ALCOLUUS	ADDRESS ADDRESS	411214 eleminare?	545418 25	408/54.20	430Mil 37	444900.21	-AMERICAL PROPERTY	440037429600007	And printed that her
1.11	incore .	\$39494.001251003	005238	SOUNDAL ASSAULTS (ABETHE	STATIAL REPORT	40/380 11	ABARTY EUROSEET	102514.5	\$34443 AND INTERNET	make: photosta	A4LINE STREET	454004 10000007	Essent .
	Gernere	104601	207003 deserves	INTERNAL ORIGINAL PARTY	JEED MARKED IN CONTRACT	render periods	204019-100606087	patter accounts	328286.75	durinest adversess?	347030.35	.MITTER	379618-418988987	Z Literatio
	fieres	14024-00101010	2017sz bilestetet	Jacquery approximation	3442570838383084	21700.14	philded approximit	(0.106)	094257 00101010	admost exercises?	station observed?	INTERPORT ADDRESS	MARY REPORT	E Colorentit
	United Singlesive	(1962).24	17461125	ABOTH STREET,	100276-081761062	JUNEAR PROPERTY.	ALC:NO GAMMANT	172945 to continue	174410.21	101010-00103-003	ANALISE PARTICIPAL	412114.70	14779	E Cataranti
	diset.	177817 FORMANT	12232-01000007	ATTACK ATTRACTOR	DISTRIBUTION COMMENNEY	117522-347510011	3994073.75	(9674)	INCOME.	127577 10400007	17000 (VARIANE?	TO PETE PROVIDENCE?	210/07/120400407	T Laurenti
	1995 -	CALCULATION ADDRESS OF	10000.00000000	17/498-29	SNACK ORDER OF	377774.5	222217.00000301	223070-0010-0010	101121 200010017	ARREST ARAPVERSE	313474-081000017	218219.70	212020-0100000007	Trained
	Testa .	LIMB.	308848 72	201000-011100001	11-M22.05183.001	124418.1	210.27466666601	179403 104985867	CHREST REPORTS	PADAL PA	81/10/11	8404.75	214888.02	
	Carlante	145FM.18588887	APLN .	AS757_DEGESSAGET	1222298-585555591	102507-00103031	22(223.35848888))	124279	TYNES RESISTOR	174945	10008-00088807	101011-011010193	118779	2.000
	Booline .	21015 (001000007	104820-000000000	(41044.20110101	64014-02010101011	119464.5	215039-010595931	98138.7	141043 53555551	anaway amazing a	111001-019888887	041861		T cannot
	See.	(4)67775	110H1-20086467	10480.20	107894-5585888867	LINENE EXCERNET	80523	344210.0	#9622	121144-00068686868	261/1.1	TABLE MULTING	1101638	2.2444
	Autoria .	69917	NOTE POWERER	Instantion and the second of	anne ortention	2222105.36	NUMBER OF STREET, STRE	2010/18/28	ALTER POLICE	-120838-79	THE REPORT	Tyling announced	111074-001010101	E totant
	Mainia	946275.9	81902.8	ADD 1 10000000	: 2010.0	1011/.001010407	skille hinsener!	80119 38010101041	201214-012200100017	21700-000000000	THE RELEASE	8001.01	8750	E tourn?
	Daught Garage	919120.93	1000	rever	10111-101000000001	1947/1.0	00000113000003300	74397 (01110104)	NUM 1	24207 08003100101	#940221801000003	(estimations)	010414236688897	E Drivent
	Array web	\$0805.77	49439.75	21204.000010000	48106 02868868801	49456 2010033031	AFTER SUSMOBILE	3754343985888	59/07 (10000000007	70/00/30380300000	R0111204/68/84/1	7400k kosteseelt?	100003300000000	2 townst
	Same	39879.21	72466	71817,618999990	8451.1	(14.077.1	43438.21	5447	4/128.3810353032	40711 ANNOUNCE	47128.380383500	70218.0059659881	21444	

- 1. Start the **Power BI Desktop** application and open the **Monthly Sales per Country** report.
- 2. In the Fields pane, right click on the **Monthly Sales per Country** table and choose **Edit Query**.
- 3. In the Query Editor, from the ribbon, choose **Home**, **Transform**, **Use First Row as Headers**.

Nix	theme	Trintfo		Add Column	View Sa	ola Help								
Close & Apply*	fiew Solution +	Recent Second *	Erfev Data	Dela tours settergi	Monage Parameters +	Retain Presieu - III Manage -	Disaur Columns*	Remote Columns*	Ling Ling	Autors -	34 14	Sam -	Carls Sala	Data Type: Text - Data Type: Text - Data Type: Text Rose as Headers - T _{ext} Reptice Values
Clais		Invi Querry		Data Solariza	Parameters	Query	Manage	Columns	Rettur	a Rowe	Solt			Transform

Notice that the first row has been promoted to become column headings.

AT, Marm	 12+ 	12.1	· 12 4	· 12 4	· 12 8	- 12.6	1.0
Stated States		#10467	1252062	#34736.73	1100885.75	1336356.75	1011297
China		0.77842.0823	3483.044.23	411320.8557	\$78728 N838	119670-4087	411234.6567
Japan		509494,8933		300796.6667	485N9.3	\$18952,5167	432160.75
Seminar		196820	297962.6657	2000916-002.2	268.540.8382	185885.5822	224255.5657

4. Rename the first column as "Country".

J: Define "data type"

There are different types of data such as numbers, dates, time, and text. Each piece of data is therefore assigned a data type. The data type then determines the type of functions that can be run against the data. For example, you can perform mathematical calculation on numeric data, but not against textual data.

Data Type	Description
Decimal Number	Numbers that have multiple decimal places
Fixed decimal number	Numbers that are limited to a fixed number of decimal places
Whole Number	Numbers that have zero decimal places
Percentage	Numbers with decimal places that are used as a percent
Date/Time	A value with both a date (month, day, year) component and a time (hour, minute, second) component
Date	A date value with no time component
Time	A time value with no date component
Date/Time/Timezone	A value with a date, time, and time zone components
Duration	A numeric value that measures a duration between two events, as opposed to a set date or time.
Text	Alpha-numeric characters
True/False	A value that is true or false, yes or no, on or off.
Binary	Photographs and sound are stored as binary data

Below is a list of data types recognized by Power BI.

K: Change a column's data type

You can use the Power Query Editor to change a data's type. Doing so will allow you to then manipulate the data in various ways, depending on the chosen type.

In this exercise you will change the Monthly Sales Data into whole numbers.

- 1. Click the icon in the left corner of the second column. Notice a drop-down menu of data types appear.
- 2. Choose **Whole Number**.



Notice the icon in the column change from 1.2 to 123.

	A ^B _C Month	1 ² 3 1	4
1	United States	818	669
2	China	377	841
3	Japan	509	495
	rmany	196	820

3. Select the 3rd through 13th columns which are for the months of February through December.

4. From the ribbon choose **Transform**, **Any Column**, **Data Type**, **Whole Number**.

File	Home	Transform	Ado	d Colum	n View	Tools	Help
Group By	D Use First Row as Headers ▼ 32 Count Rows				rpe: Decimal Decimal Num Fixed decima	Number 🔻 Iber Il number	1 → 2 Replace Values ▼) Fill ▼ 1 Pivot Column
	Tab	le		١	Whole Numb	per N	ny Column
				F	Percentage	3	
				(Date/Time		

Notice that each of the selected columns now has the "123" icon.

L: Add columns

The Power Query Editor lets you add columns to your data. In this example you will add two columns. You will first create an index column so each country record will have an ID column. Then you will a Total Sales column for the total sales of all 12 months.

Add an Index column

1. From the ribbon choose Add Column, General, Index Column, From 1.



Notice a new Index column appears on the right.

2. Right click on the Index column, choose Move, then choose To Beginning.

Add a custom column for Total Sales

- 1. From the ribbon choose Add Column, General, Custom Column.
- 2. In the **New column name** field enter **Total Sales**.
- 3. In the **Custom column formula** field enter the following:

[1] + [2] + [3] + [4] + [5] + [6] + [7] + [8] + [9] + [10]+ [11] + [12]

Notice the formula encloses field names in square brackets the names of the 12 columns of monthly sales. You can enter the formula from the keyboard, or you can select the month field from the Available columns section and then click the << Insert button follow by typing the +.

4. Click OK.

Custom Column		
Add a column that is computed from the other columns.		
New column name		
Total Sales 4 Custom column formula ①	Available columns	
= [1] + [2] + [3] + [4] + [5] + [6] + [7] + [8] + [9] + [10] + [11] + [12] 5	Index Month 1 2 3 4 5 2	~
Learn about Power Query formulas	< insert	
✓ No syntax errors have been detected.	6 ок	Cancel

Notice the new Total Sales column appears on the right side of the data.

Notice in the **Query Settings** pane, in the **Applied Steps** list, next to the **Added Custom** step is an edit icon . When clicked it will let you edit the formula.

Notice its data type icon is both ABC and 123. Instead, we want the total to use the Whole Number data type.

- 5. Click the data type icon on the left of the Total Sales column, then choose **Whole Number**.
- 6. From the ribbon choose **Home**, **Close**, **Close & Apply**.
- 7. Save your result in the exercise folder as **Modified Monthly Sales per Country**.

M: Unpivot data

It appears that the data in the Monthly Sales per Country file was the result of a Pivot Table in Excel. Pivoted Data is great for helping humans view and understand data. It is not so great for building visualization; instead, the original unpivoted data would be better. However, we no longer have the original unpivoted data. The good news is we can use the Power Query Editor to unpivot the data.

In this exercise you will unpivot the sales data, and then remove the Total Sales records.

- 1. Return to the Query Editor by right clicking on the **Monthly Sales per Country** field and then choose **Edit Query**.
- 2. Select the **12 monthly sales columns** and the **Total Sales column**.
- 3. From the ribbon choose **Transform**, **Any Column**, **Unpivot Columns**, **Unpivot Only Selected Columns**.

Notice the 13 columns have been replaced with two columns: one with the month number, and one with the sales value.

- 4. Rename the **Value** column as **Sales**.
- 5. Rename the **Attribute** column as **Time Period**.
- 6. Click the Time Period drop-down, and uncheck the **Total Sales** value, then click **OK**.

Notice the data is now unpivoted and no longer includes the Total Sales records.

- 7. From the ribbon choose **Home**, **Close**, **Close** & **Apply**.
- 8. Save your result in the exercise folder as **Unpivoted Monthly Sales per Country**, then close Power BI.

N: Split a column into multiple columns

Sometimes the raw data you import into Power BI has data that should be split into multiple columns. In this exercise you will open split a "Last, First" Contact Name column into a Contact First Name and Contact Last Name column. You will do the same thing for a Sales Rep column.

- 1. Start the **Power BI Desktop** application.
- 2. From the ribbon, select **Home**, **Data**, **Excel Workbook**.
- 3. Choose the **Data to be Split.xlsx** from the Exercises folder and click **Open**.
- 4. Check the **Sheet1** table and click **Transform Data**.

Notice the data is loaded immediately into the Power Query Editor.

- 5. Select the **Contact** column.
- 6. From the ribbon, select **Transform**, **Text Column**, **Split Column**, **By Delimiter**.
- 7. In the **Split Column by Delimiter** dialog box set the following options then click **OK**.

Setting	Option
Select or enter delimiter	Comma
Split at	Left-most delimiter

- 8. Rename the first column to **Contact Last Name**.
- 9. Rename the second column to **Contact First Name**.
- 10. Repeat the process for the **SaleRep** column.

O: Manipulate / correct numeric date and time data

The Power Query Editor lets you modify date fields. For example, notice the Order Date field in the Data to be Split.xlsx file displays the time as well as the date. Since all the times are midnight, you will change this field to show just the date.

- 1. Select the **Order Date** field.
- 2. From the ribbon, select **Transform**, **Date & Time Column**, **Date**, **Date Only**.

Notice the field now only shows the date.

The Power Query Editor lets you manipulate dates in other ways. Feel free to experiment and then undo the applied step after you see what it does.

3. From the ribbon, select **Transform**, **Date & Time Column**, **Date**, **Year**.

Notice under Year there are options for the Year (which will drop the month and day values), Start of Year, and End of Year.

Notice under **Month** there are options for the **Month** (which will drop the year and day values), **Start of Month**, **End of Month**, **Days in Month** and **Name of Month**.

Notice there are similar options for **Quarter**, **Week**, and **Day**. Notice there are also options for **Earliest** and **Latest**.

If you applied any of these options, click the most recent $\overline{\times}$ in the applied steps area.

P: Manipulate / correct numeric data with math

The Power Query Editor lets you modify numeric data. In this exercise you increase the unit price by \$10 and double the quantity ordered.

Increase the price by \$10.

- 1. Select the **Unit Price** field.
- 2. From the ribbon, select **Transform**, **Number Column**, **Standard**, **Add**.
- 3. In the Add dialog box enter a **value** of **10** and click **OK**.

Notice each unit price has increased by \$10.

Double the quantity.

- 1. Select the **Qty** field.
- 2. From the ribbon, select **Transform**, **Number Column**, **Standard**, **Multiply**.
- 3. In the Multiply dialog box enter a value of 2 and click OK.

Notice each quantity has doubled.

4. Become familiar with the additional number column manipulation options that are available on the **Transform**, **Number Column** portion of the ribbon.

If you applied any of these options, click the most recent $\overline{\times}$ in the applied steps area.

Q: Practice

Now that you know how to manipulate data with the Power Query Editor, see if you can do the following:

- 1. Create an **Extended Price** column with a calculation of [Unit Price] * [Qty].
- 2. Change the **Extended Price** column data type to a fixed decimal number.
- 3. Rename the query to **Split Data**.

The Query Editor should now look like the screen shot below.

· · · · ·	of Star. Name (say frame									÷.,
1111	Autoon will turner Adda	1100 mm								
	A DE LA IN	in the second		The loss far free month man	r* Stepflom 1 23win	1999)				
Then it is a set	of arter distances then	the start of the start of the start	were Roman this banan in	AND DESCRIPTION OF TAXABLE P.	Thereshall when					
AND T TRANSFORM	ar 201 Ming Anno	abilit . Newboart 12 Manager 1 (10	unit? Chiefer Agen * Agen *	and A Property cares	the summer of the second	National Street Street				
den derla	are Destore fee	and the state	borge Calarest Bestard Bests Tare	January 1	Canada a	langer.				
2-0-01 (T	1 mark interiority	1114 American Contest	and an international states	TANK INCOMENDATION OF TANK	And Address of Concession, Name		in the sum		Gary Mirrys	
7 Million	1.840		100.0201 (amount	New Concernence of Co	1011	0.000 40		2110/0 10	A PROPERTY.	
	a weather	100	212/209 (10000)	(MAGENT)	107	palvate .		21220-20	law	
	1.744	New	STANDA (Narrow)	Degree	1189	2008.00	4	20,786-65	laiden -	
	a hours	Country .	URDER Lovering	und.	1210	200.00		21899.20	and a second sec	
	2. 4444	144	2010000 hunter	Michael .	141	104.00	100	21220.45		
	4.54	(min)	AND THE REPORT OF THE PARTY OF	(march)	1444	248.45		23,686,821	A MINUTORY	
	1.000	and the second s	401084 (princip)	Arre-	14/1	1000 00		2,79.91	Tartet.	
	1. S. Data	1944	Add, Collins, Terrative	Page 1	4844	24444	4.1	27.009-67	Pairtaine	
	a second	distant.	ellevine instrument.	down	118	244140	- 10 C	22499.37	Recented Reality	
	12 1990		\$125,004 Peeper	magery).	114	100.00	10	1997.02	Discoul Type	
	111 manual		Silvin Learns	101 (mil)	1899			10448-05	Added Coppine	
	17.16 mod :	Rame	830304 948	Toposi-	1000	249.82	(4)	11/19-01	Tarr County Denne.	
	10 remains	them.	\$15000 PM	Contract.	2004	244140	10	111096-01	Etward Sport	
	1 Million and a second	246	B.B.L.COMP. Televisio	Diagoni -	4114	214141	14	21789-40	Revenued Linux na	
	15. verderund	340	28/34/9894 (Issaina-	Weblan	4031	.0M0.00		22,798-41	thread the	
	10 sentrant	Bull .	10/05/0004 (Semi-senio	Arres		2010		/2886ah	and Library by Description	
	117.14	10,000	CLUB/ODF Princip	(August)	1819		100	1,041.01	Second Second	
	10 -040	5474	2010/004 Love Pd		2414	343.FF		0.071.11	Although Column	
	15 Depter	1.00	COLORADO DA COLORADO	lance .	11.10	(800.81		1467.0	the state of the state	- 21
	and the first of	Tores .	100.0008 (Second	Page 10	4171	200.42		21,259-87	Record Lineses	
	1.10 0446	According	areasiant mercen-	(regree)	2101	1002.08	1.0	5496.32	And Add Connects	
	1 III Landing	direct.	UNIVERSITY (Summaries)	- Anne	1010	200.00		1,409 91	In company thread (
	10.000	10	Address francis	100 gar#1	Jant .	100.00		- milet		
-		PERCENT AND ADDRESS OF ADDRESS OF ADDRESS ADDR		barren .						-

When finished, close and apply your work, then save the report as **Modified Split Data**. Finally close Power BI.

4. Create the Data Model

Unit time: 90 minutes

Complete this unit and you will be able to:

- A. Append records from one source to another
- B. Merge columns from multiple sources
- C. Hide a table from a report
- D. List the different join types
- E. Join data from different tables
- F. Edit the model

A: Append records from one source to another

Data can be messy. In the last chapter you say how to use Power BI and the Power Query Editor to manipulate individual tables and fields. You cleaned up the data, changed column headings, modified data types, split some columns, and inserted others.

In this chapter you will continue preparing a data model by connecting, merging, and joining data from different tables. You start out by combining data from multiple sheets into a new sheet.

- 1. **Start Excel** and **open** the **Xtreme Bicycles Sales.xlsx** file from the exercise folder.
- 2. Notice the following:
 - The workbook has 8 sheets.
 - Most of the sheets have data.
 - Each sheet has its own kind of data.
 - The Bicycle Sales sheet and the Accessory Sales sheet have the same columns. They could have been combined into one sheet, but the author chose to keep them on separate sheets.
 - Many of the sheets have an ID column. Sometimes these ID fields show up on different sheets.
 - The Relationship sheet has no data. Instead, it has a graphical diagram that shows how the different tables are linked.
- 3. Close Excel.
- 4. Start the **Power BI Desktop** application.
- 5. If the startup screen is displayed, click the X in the top right corner to close it.
- 6. From the ribbon's **Home** tab, select **Get data**, choose **Excel Workbook**, and then select the **Xtreme Bicycles Sales.xlsx** file from the Exercise folder, choose all the sheets except Relationships, and click **Transform Data**.

Create the new sheet

- 1. Right click on the Accessory Sales query, then choose Duplicate.
- 2. In the Query Settings pane, rename the Accessory Sales (2) sheet to All Sales Items.

- 3. From the ribbon select Home, Combine, Append Queries, Append Queries.
- 4. In the Append dialog box select **Two Tables**, then in the **Table to append** drop down choose **Bicycle Sales** as the destination, then click **OK**.



The All Sales Items now includes 3,692 records which includes the 1,774 Bicycle Sales records + the 1,918 Accessory Sales records.



Add an Extended Price column

- 1. Add a Custom Column named **Extended Price**. The formula will be [Unit Price] * [Qty].
- 2. Change the data type to **Fixed Decimal Number**.

B: Merge columns from multiple sources

Two methods exist for combining data from two sources: vertically and horizontally. A vertical merge occurs when you add records as in the previous exercise. A horizontal merge occurs when you add columns from one query to another. For example, it would be beneficial to have the Product Type Name field in the Product table. That is what you will do in this exercise.

- 1. In the Power Query Editor select the **Product** query.
- 2. From the ribbon select Home, Combine, Merge Queries, Merge Queries.

The Merge dialog box is display and shows a preview of the Product query.

3. In the dialog box choose the **Product Type** from the drop down.

Match the two queries by Product Type ID

- 4. In the dialog box, in the **Product** table, select the **Product Type ID** column.
- 5. In the dialog box, in the **Product Type** table, select the **Product Type ID** column.
- 6. In the Join Kind drop down select the Left Outer (all from first, matching from second) option.
- 7. Click **OK**.



Finish preparing the new column

- 8. Notice the following:
 - A new Product Type column has been added to the Product query.
 - All the values in the new column are Table.
 - The Product Type column heading has this icon:
- 9. In the **Product Type** column, click the 🔤 icon.
- 10. Click the **Expand** option.
- 11. Uncheck the **Product Type ID** field.
- 12. Uncheck the **Description** field.
- 13. Check the **Use original column name as prefix** option.
- 14. Click OK.



The Product Type field now shows the product type name value from the Product Type table.

m.	+ AB Product Name	+ st Coke	· AL Size	· At Gender	- 12 SAPrise	- sig Prodect Type ID	· A Promet Class	2. Product Tape Prostact Type Same
1	1103 Active Outdoors Drachet Grove		at earn		nat	34.5	S Accessory	(Poves
1	2202 Active Outdoors Crochet Grove		ef im		null	24.5	5 Accelsory	Goves
1	2222 Active Oundoors Drachet Glove	14	al med		. nat	34.8	5 Accounty	(2peet
4	1104 Active Quedoors Crothet Slove		at ing		, pissil	14.5	5 Accessory	Goves
2	1105 Active Outdoors Crochet Gove	1	at ship		(full	34.5	5 Accessory	Goves
8	1206 Active Outdoors Lycra Glove	14	ATTRA G		mak	38.5	5 Accentury	Goves
7	1207 Active Outdoors Lycre Glove	0.	more the		nult	26.5	5 Accessory	Gioves
	1108 Active Outdoors Lyrra Glove	20	47 ant		rul	26.5	5 Actestory	Gover.
.9.	1209 Active Outdoors Lucta Glove		al met		nut	26.5	5 Accessory	Gioves
10	2228 Active Outdoors Lytra Glove		at ing		rult	26.9	5 Accessory	Croves
11.	IIII Active Outdoors Larra Glove		gife To		real	26.1	5 Accessory	Gover
12	2202 Triumph Pri: Heimet	Briteck .	199		mail	42.9	# Accessory	Helmett
18	2202 Triumphi Pro Helmet	white	im.		nat	42.9	8 Accounty	Heimetti
14	3203 Triumph Pro Helmet	black	med		nat	42.9	# Accessory	Heirstets
18	2304 Jalumon Pro Hestvet	white	and the second		(Aut)	45.9	# Accessory	Heimeti.
-		black			-		Contraction of the second seco	

Clean up

- 15. Rename the field as **Product Type Name**.
- 16. From the ribbon choose **Home**, **Close**, **Close** & **Apply**.

You should now see the following tables in the Fields pane.



C: Hide a table from a report

After merging, you may discover you no longer have a need for all the tables in your model. While you can delete them, you also have the option to merely hide them. The advantage of hiding is you can always unhide the table if you need to get to it.

In this exercise you will hide the **Product Type**, **Accessory Sales**, and **Bicycle Sales** tables.

Hiding Tables

- 1. Be sure you are in the Power BI Desktop.
- 2. In the **Fields pane**, right click on the **Product Type** table and choose **Hide**.
- 3. In the **Fields pane**, right click on the **Accessory Sales** table and choose **Hide**.
- 4. In the **Fields pane**, right click on the **Bicycle Sales** table and choose **Hide**.

Viewing Hidden Tables

1. In the **Fields pane**, right click on the **All Sales Items** table and choose **View hidden**.

Notice all tables are now displayed, and that the hidden tables have a hidden icon next to their name.

If you need to unhide a table, right click on it, and remove the **Hide** check mark by clicking on it.

If you need to unhide all the hidden tables, right click on any table and then click the **Unhide all** option.

	6	1	Fields	33
	-	5	P Search.	
	3	The second	MI Accessory Sales	-
New Yorks			All Long Borns	
Nev colur	10		Runce Issue	
New Jurist	***	100	Comme	
Fathertick	di		(Includes and	
lai are			Color.	
Stanage is	in.	44.40	Research of Concession, Name	
Instantiant	1.4	194	Property Street	
bisings a	-	iin.	a reprint part	
ferent				
Date to 1		deri .		
r high				
View mail	41			
Unificite all				
Conference a	4			
Lane at				

D: List the different join types

Some of the reports you create will naturally come from multiple tables. This will require either combining all the tables into one table (which is not practical) or joining the tables in your data model. Joining tables means you link them together via key fields. For example, the image below shows the tables and fields in a Sales data model for Rad Bikes, a competitor to Xtreme Bicycle.



Notice the lines and arrows show the key fields that can be linked to one another to create the relationships.

Four types of joins can exist in a Power BI model. They are listed below with a description and example.

Join Type	Description	Example
One-to- one	One record in the first table has only one corresponding record in the second table.	One record in the Employee table has only one corresponding record in the Employee Info table. The relationship is based on the Employee ID fields.
One-to- many	One record in the first table has many corresponding records in the second table.	One record in the Customer table has many corresponding records in the Order table. The relationship is based on the Customer ID fields.
Many- to-one	Many records in the first table have only one corresponding record in the second table.	Many records in the Order table have only one corresponding record in the Customer table. The relationship is based on the Customer ID fields.
Many- to- many	Many records in the first table have many corresponding records in the second table.	Many records in the Order table have many corresponding records in the Product table. This relationship cannot be set in this model because there is no common field between the two tables.

Cardinality

"Cardinality" is another word for relationship type. You will see the word cardinality in some of the Power BI screens.

Parent-child relationship

The one-to-many relationship is often referred to as a parent-child relationship because one parent can have many children.

The many-to-one relationship is the same as the one-to-many, except that it is from the children's point of view.

Many to many alternative

The many-to-many relationship is seldom used in a relational database. Instead, two separate one-to-many relationships are created. For example, the many-to-many between Order and Products can be achieved by creating a one-to-many between the Order table and the All Sales table, and another one-to-many between the Product table and the All Sales table.



E: Join data from different tables

Power BI provides multiple methods for establishing relationships between tables. By default, when data is first imported into Power BI the application will autodetect relationship when the data is imported and loaded. You can change this by selecting **File**, **Options and settings**, **Options**, **Data Load**, and changing the relationship options. For now we will keep the setting as is.



Changing relationships from the Report View

As demonstrated in this exercise, you can change relationships from the report view.

- 1. In Power BI desktop click the Report view icon
- 2. From the ribbon select **Modeling**, **Relationships**, **Manage relationships**.

The Manage relationships dialog box appears.

Notice three relationships already exist.

Notice for each relationship you can see the **From table and column**, and the **To table and column**.

Rie	Home Ins	ert Modeling	View	nielp			
Managa Managa restoreing		Antonio Columna table		Page Page parameter What is	Ranapa Vary Marapa Vary Marapa Sary	CBA Language Enguence Cetup - scherca-	
M 📢			Monthle-	1			
E	Mana	age relation	nships				×
99	Arthe	From: Table (Col	omei		70.7	alain (California	
		Deter (Cuttome	ir iti)		Cast	omer (Castomer IC)	
		Order (Employe	e 01		fire	(aver (Employee (D)	
	*	Product (Produ	ct Type (D)		Prod	Left Type (Product 7µpe (D)	
	466	Adomete		0eete			
							Ces

View relationship details

- 3. Select the first relationship and click the **Edit...** button.
 - Notice the first table is the **Order** table and the **Customer ID** field is selected.

Notice the second table is the **Customer** table and its **Customer ID** field is selected

Notice the Cardinality is Many to one.

Order					*					
Order ID Customer I		tomer ID	Employee ID 7		Order D	ate	Rec	uired Date	Ship Date 12/10/2003 4:00:0	
		25			Friday, Dece	mber 5, 2003	Thursday	, December 18, 2003		
1189		52		7	Thursday, Jan	uary 15, 2004	Wednesday, January 21, 2004		1/18/2004 7:52:10	
1199		31		7	Monday, Jan	uary 19, 2004	Sund	ay, January 25, 2004	1/22/2004 8	:27:51
<										>
	2	Pathfinders		Christine		Manley		410 Eighth Avenue	null	DeKa
	2	Pauninuers Psycho-Ovcla		Alexande	: ar	Mast		410 Eighth Avenue	null	Hunte
	6	Rockshocks f	or Jocks	Heather	-	Davis		1984 Sydney Street	null	Austi
<										>
Cardinality						Cross filter	direction			
Many to on	e (*	:1)			•	Single				*

4. Click **OK**.

Create a new One-to-Many relationship for Orders and All Sales Items

- 5. Click the **New...** button
- 6. From the first drop down select the **Order** table.
- 7. Select the **Order ID** column.
- 8. From the second drop down select the **All Sales Items** table.
- 9. Select the **Order Number** column.

10. Notice the computer autodetected that this is a One-to-many relationship.

If you needed to, you could click the Cardinality drop down and choose a different relationship.

11. Click OK.

Urder		0				*			
Order ID	Custo	omer ID	Emplo	yee ID		Order [late	Required Date	Ship Date
1020		25		7	Frid	ay, Dece	mber 5, 2003	Thursday, December 18, 2003	12/10/2003 4:00:00
1189		52		7	Thurse	day, Jan	vary 15, <mark>2</mark> 004	Wednesday, January 21, 2004	1/18/2004 7:52:10
1199	1199 31 7			7	Monday, January 19, 2004			Sunday, January 25, 2004	1/22/2004 8:27:51
<									>
9	1033		2215	5	3.9	3			
9	1039 1042		2213 2210	5.	3.9 3.9	3 3			
-	1066		2215	5	3.9	3			
Cardinality							Cross filter	direction	
One to many (1:*)						7	Single		
Une to ma									

Notice the new relationship has been added.

Active	From: Table (Column)	To: Table (Column)	
	Order (Customer ID)	Customer (Customer ID)	
	Order (Employee ID)	Employee (Employee ID)	
	Order (Order ID)	All Sales Items (Order Number)	
*	Product (Product Type ID)	Product Type (Product Type IO)	
New_	Autodetect. Edit. Delete		

12. Practice: Create a new relationship between the **Product** table and the **All Sales Items** table.

						*							
Product ID	roduct ID Product Name		Colo	r	Size	Gender	SRPrice	Product 1	Type ID	Product Class			
1101	1101 Active Outdoors Crochet Glove 1102 Active Outdoors Crochet Glove			null	xsm	null	14.5		5	Accessory			
1102				null	sm	null	14.5	-		5 Accessory			
1103	Activ	e Outdoors Crock	het Glove		null	med	null	14.5		5	Accessory		
<											>		
10	039	2213		53.9		3							
10	039	2213		53.9		3							
10	042	2210		53.9		3							
10	066	2215		53.9		3							
							Cross filter dir	rection					
Cardinality			One to many (1:*)						Single -				
Cardinality One to many	(1:*)					*	Single				-		
Cardinality One to many Make this re	(1:*) elatio	nship active				*	Single	urity filter in	both dire	ctions	*		

Your list of relationships should be like the following:

Active	From: Table (Column)	To: Table (Column)	
~	Order (Customer ID)	Customer (Customer ID)	
-	Order (Employee ID)	Employee (Employee ID)	
*	Order (Order ID)	All Sales items (Order Number)	
	Product (Product ID)	All Sales Items (Product Num)	
	Product (Product Type ID)	Product Type (Product Type ID)	
New	Autodetect Edit Deseta		

13. Click Close.
F: Edit the model

Power BI includes a model view that lets you see your model. It includes the following:

- Tiles for each table
- Relationship lines between tables
- Icons to identify the one side 1 or the many side * of a relationship
- Icons to identify if the table is visible or hidden .

In this exercise you will edit the model.

- 1. In Power BI desktop click the Model view icon 🖷 .
- 2. Grab the Customer table's tile by its title bar and drag it to the top left corner of the screen.
- 3. Repeat the process to move the tables to the location specified below.



4. Save the report as **Xtreme Bicycles Sales** and close Power BI.

5. Create Visualizations and Reports

Unit time: 90 minutes

Complete this unit and you will be able to:

- A. Define "Visualization"
- B. Define "Report"
- C. List various types of visualizations
- D. Create a visualization
- E. Format a visualization
- F. Add more pages to a report
- G. Add more visualizations
- H. Filter a page or report
- I. Define Slicer
- J. Create a Slicer
- K. Complete a practice exercise

A: Define "Visualization"

In this course so far, you have learned how to get data into Power BI and how to prepare that data for data modeling, and then how to create the data model. Along the way you have created a few visualizations. But what is a visualization?

A visualization (or visual for short) is an object that "displays insights that have been discovered in the data."¹ For example, the Stacked bar chart we created earlier is a visualization. You may have one or many visuals in a Power BI report.

¹ See <u>https://docs.microsoft.com/en-us/power-bi/visuals/power-bi-report-visualizations</u>

B: Define "Report"

A report is a collection of visualizations. When you saved your Power BI work you were saving a report. Microsoft says, "A Power BI report is a multi-perspective view into a dataset, with visuals that represent different findings and insights from that dataset."²

Each report, in addition to having one or more visualizations, can also have one or more pages. A Power BI report file can have multiple pages, and each page can have multiple visualizations. The image below shows a sample report created by Microsoft. Notice it has multiple pages. Notice the visible page has multiple visualizations.



² See <u>https://docs.microsoft.com/en-us/power-bi/consumer/end-user-reports</u>

C: List various types of visualizations

In the Power BI visualizations pane, you can see multiple icons that represent different types of visualizations. More visualizations can be downloaded from Microsoft.

Identify the icon

In this exercise you will identify the names of Visualizations in the Visualizations pane.

- 1. If necessary, start Power BI and **open** the **Xtreme Bicycles Sales** report.
- 2. If necessary, expand the **Visualization** pane.
- 3. Hover your mouse over a visualization icon and notice its name appears as a tool tip.
- 4. Using the screen shot on the next page and the table below, match each visualization with its name. For example, the icon at A1 is the Stacked bar chart.

	Line and clustered column chart		Area Chart	Treemap
	Line and stacked column chart	_	Line Chart	Funnel
	Pagination report (preview)	_	Get more visuals	Matrix
	Power Automate for Power BI	_	Key influencers	Slicer
	100% Stacked column chart	_	R script visual	Gauge
	ArcGIS Maps for Power BI	_	Smart narrative	Table
	Power Apps for Power BI	_	Waterfall chart	Card
	100% Stacked bar chart	_	Multi-row card	KPI
	Clustered column chart		Python visual	Мар
	Stacked column chart		Scatter chart	Q&A
	Clustered bar chart		Ribbon chart	
	Decomposition tree		Donut chart	
A1	Stacked bar chart		Field map	
	Staked Area Chart	_	Pie chart	

	Α	В	С	D	Е	F
1		AA	E	ha	HB	AA
2	~					
3	rl	뮿	••••		0	Ē
4	Q	8	R	123	=	
5	Ş			R	Ру	P ^a _p
6	-		1		2	\otimes
7	\boxtimes	••••				

D: Create a visualization

In this exercise you will create a simple table visualization, and then you will experiment changing it into various other visualizations.

- 1. If necessary, **start Power BI** and **open** the **Xtreme Bicycles Sales** report, and select the **Report** view.
- 2. If necessary, **expand** the **Fields pane**.
- 3. **Expand** the **Product** table.
- 4. Click the check box for the **Product Type Name** field.
- 5. **Expand** the **All Sales Items** table.
- 6. Click the check box for the **Qty** field.

Notice a spreadsheet like table is displayed showing the quantity sold for each product type.

7. If necessary, **expand** the **Visualization pane**, then click the fields icon

Notice the columns well shows the Product Type Name and Qty fields have been chosen.

- 8. Using the visualizations size handles, make the chart much wider and taller.
- 9. In the Visualization pane click the **Stacked Bar** chart.

Notice the visual changes to a bar chart.

10. In the Visualization pane click the **Stacked Column** chart.

Notice the visual changes to a column chart.

- In the Visualization pane click the Line chart.
 Notice the visual changes to a line chart.
- 12. In the Visualization pane click the **Area** chart.

Notice the visual changes to an area chart.

13. In the Visualization pane click the **Pie** chart.

Notice the visual changes to a pie chart.

- 14. In the Visualization pane click the Donut chart.Notice the visual changes to a donut chart.
- 15. In the Visualization pane click the **Treemap** chart.

Notice the visual changes to a Treemap chart.

16. Change the Visualization back to a **Stacked Bar** chart.



In the next exercise you will format the Staked Bar chart.

E: Format a visualization

In this exercise you will format the page and its visualization.

Format the page

1. Click outside the visualization but inside the page

Gen	by Product Type Name		- Ca	V 22 -	
	(hereal)				
	Mantan				
	Surgetter.				
per Nare					
Pressure 7	Satis				Click 3
	Hybert				outside the visualization.
	-				
	(m				
		508	(100)	that .	

2. In the visualization's pane click the **Format Report** icon

Notice the options are all related to the page.

- 3. **Expand** the **Page information** section.
- 4. In the Name well enter **My first visualization** as the page name.
- 5. **Collapse** the **Page information** section.
- 6. **Expand** the **Canvas background** section.
- Click the Color drop down and choose a different color.
 Notice the color did NOT change.
- 8. Drag the **Transparency** setting to the left to **0%**.

Notice the page background has changed to your selected color.

9. Click the **Revert to default** link.

Notice the page color is back to white with 100% transparency.

Format the chart

In this exercise you will have the opportunity to format the chart. Much of this exercise will be unstructured, thus giving you the option play with and become familiar with the various options.

1. Click inside the chart.

Notice the Visualizations pane is again displaying Y-axis and X-axis information.

2. In the visualization's pane again click the **Format** icon 💯.

Notice the options are now related to the chart.

Y-axis options

3. Click the **Y-axis** option to turn it **off**.

Notice the names of each bar have disappeared.

4. Click the **Y-axis** option again to turn it **on**.

Notice the names of each bar have reappeared.

5. Expand the Y-axis section.

Notice you have options to switch the axis position (off = left or on = right) as well as the axis font type, size, attributes and color. You can also expand the title section to change the axis title, its font, size, etc.

Experiment with these options as time permits.

X-axis options

6. Collapse the Y-axis section and **expand** the **X-axis** section.

Notice the range section lets you change minimum and maximum values, turn on or off a logarithmic scale, and toggle inverting the range. The values section lets you change font attributes, display units, and decimal places of values. The title section also lets you change the title, its font, color, etc.

Experiment with these options as time permits.

Data labels

7. **Collapse** the X-axis section and then turn on the option for Data labels.

Notice each bar now has a data label specifying the count for each product.

8. **Expand** the **Data labels** section.

Notice you can change the position of the label. The values section lets you format the label's font, display units, decimal places and more. The background section lets you add a colored background for your label.

Experiment with these options as time permits.

Other options

9. Collapse the Data labels section.

Notice you have more Visual options and General options. Experiment with these and other options (gridlines, zoom sliders, bars, etc.) as time permits.

F: Add more pages to a report

A Power BI report can be composed of multiple pages. In this exercise you will add a new page to the existing report.

- 1. If necessary, **start Power BI** and **open** the **Xtreme Bicycles Sales** report, and select the **Report** view.
- 2. At the bottom of the application click the + icon to add a new page.

You can also create a new page by from the ribbon by selecting **Insert**, **New Page**, and then choosing either **Blank page** or **Duplicate page**.



- 3. Right click on the tab of the new page and choose **Rename**.
- 4. Enter the new name: **More Visualizations**.

G: Add more visualizations

In this exercise you will create multiple visualizations on the same page.

- 1. In the fields pane expand the **Customer** table.
- 2. Check the box next to the **Country**.

A new Map visualization is displayed. Each dot represents a country.

- 3. Resize the map so you can view the whole world.
- 4. In the fields pane expand the **All Sales Items** table.
- 5. Check the box next to the **Extended Price**.

Notice the size of the circles has changed to reflect the total Extended Price per country. If you hover over each circle a tool tip will display the Extended Price for that country.



Rename the Extended Price for this visual

- 1. In the visualizations pane, click the expand button for the **Bubble Size** which currently has a value of **Extended Price**.
- 2. From the pop-up menu select **Rename for this visual**.
- 3. Type **Total Sales** in the Size well and press ENTER.

4. Hover your mouse over a blue circle and notice the tool tip now says Total Sales.



Add a border

- 2. Click **General**, expand **Effects**, and turn on the **Visual border** option.

Duplicate a visual

- 1. Click on the visualizations title to select it.
- 2. Press Ctrl C to copy the visualization.
- 3. Press Ctrl V to paste a new visualization.
- 4. Move the new visualization below the first.

Notice dashed red guidelines appear to help you line up the two visuals.

5. In the visualizations pane click the **Stacked column chart.**

Notice the second visualization now displays a column chart.

- 6. In the visualizations pane click the format icon $\frac{1}{2}$.
- 7. **Turn on** the **Data labels** option.

- 8. **Expand** the **Data labels** section.
- 9. Change the **Orientation** to **Vertical**.

Create a third visual

- 1. Click outside both visuals so neither is selected.
- 2. In the fields pane click on the check box for the following fields:
 - Product, Product Type Name
 - Product, Product Name
 - All Sales Items, Qty
 - All Sales Items, Unit Price
- 3. Format the visual as desired.

Practice: Create a fourth visual

- 1. Duplicate the third visual.
- 2. Position the new visual below the third.
- 3. Change the visual to a **Pie Chart**.
- 4. In the fields pane, **uncheck** the **Product Name** field.



H: Filter a page or report

The filters pane allows you to filter / hide data from a visual, from a page, or from the whole report. Some filters are basic in that they allow you to select the data you want to see. Other, more advanced filters, let you filter the data with a formula. In this exercise you will filter the page with basic filtering.

Basic Filtering on the page

1. Expand the filters pane.

Notice you have options to apply a filter for this page and/or all pages.

2. Drag the **Customer / Country** field to the **Filter on this page** well.

Notice a filter card is created.

3. Check the box next to Australia.

Notice the visualizations on the page are filtered to only show data that is related to a customer in Australia.

4. Scroll down and check the box next to China.

Notice the visualizations on the page now only show data that is related to customers in Australia and China.

Notice the top of the filter card says Country is Australia or China.



- 5. Click the **eraser** icon \leq to clear the filter.
- 6. Click the check box for **Require single selection**.

Notice the filter now only lets you select one country at a time.

7. Clear the check box for **Require single selection** and click the **eraser** again to clear the filter.

Advanced Filtering

 Click the drop down for the Filter type and change the option from Basic filtering to Advanced filtering.

Notice the filtering options have changed.

iters on ans page	1011
Country	
s canada or is usa	
Filter type ①	
Advanced filtering	1 ~
Show items when the value	
is	2 ~
Canada 3	
🔾 And 🖲 Or 👍	
is 5	~
USA 6	
	Annhy Elter

- 2. Click the drop-down arrow for the **Show items when the value** option then choose the "**is**" option.
- 3. In the well below the drop down type "Canada".
- 4. Click the radio button for **Or**.
- 5. In the next drop down choose the "is" option.
- 6. In the well below that enter "USA".

Notice the page has not yet changed.

- 7. Click the **Apply filter** text.
- 8. As time permits see if you can apply the following filters:
 - Countries that contain aus in their name.
 - Countries that start with the letter A.
 - Countries that are not the USA.

Lock a filter

Power BI lets you lock a filter for users / viewers of your report by clicking the Lock icon at the top of the filter card.



This feature will not affect your ability to change the filter because you are a report designer.

Remove a Filter

To remove a filter, click the X next to the lock.



1. Remove the page filter by clicking the X.

Format Filter pane and Filter cards

When you click on the page (as opposed to a specific visual), and then in the Visualizations pane click the format page icon, you will see an option to format the Filter pane. As shown on the next page, this includes options to change the background color, font, and border.

Format Filter cards

You can also format the look and feel of your filter cards. As shown on the next page you can change the color, font, and border of cards.

✓ Filter pane	✓ Filter cards
 ✓ Text Font Segoe UI ✓ 12 Text and icons color 	Apply settings to State Default
	✓ Text
> Input	Font Segoe UI 🗸 9 🛟
> Header	Text and icons color
> Search box	> Input
> Border	> Border
> Background	> Background
> Options	C Reset to default
Reset to default	

I: Define Slicer

A slicer is a special type of visualization. It lets you apply a page level filter to the other visualizations on the page. But unlike filters, it not only appears in the filters pane, but it also appears in the report alongside other visualization.

J: Create a Slicer

1. In the Visualization pane click the **Slicer** icon.

Notice a new slicer visualization appears on the page.

- 2. In the **Fields** pane expand the **Customer** table and then drag **Country** field into the slicer.
- 3. In the slicer check the box for **Argentina**.

Notice the four visualizations change to reflect data that is related to Argentina.

4. In the slicer check the box for **Brazil**.

Notice the four visualizations change to reflect data that is related to Brazil, and the data for Argentina is no longer included.

5. While holding down the control key, in the slicer check the box for **Argentina**, **Bolivia**, and **Chile**.

Notice the four visualizations change to reflect data that is related to Argentina, Bolivia, and Chile has been added to the data for Brazil.



6. While holding down the control key, in the slicer click the box for **Argentina**.

Notice Argentina is removed from the four visualizations.

7. With the Slicer still selected, in the **visualization pane**, click the **format your visual** icon.

8. Click the expand button for the **Slicer settings**, and then the **Selection** controls.

Notice the following options:

Single select	When single select is turned on, only one country can be selected, and all the other options disappear. When turned off the other options reappear.
Multi-select with CTRL	As you have seen when this is turned on the CTRL key can be used to add additional countries. When this is turned off, additional countries can be added / removed by checking / unchecking their box.
Show "Select all" option	When turned on the Slicer has a Select all option.

9. Set the following options:

Visual General						
✓ Slicer settings						
✓ Options						
Orientation						
Vertical 🗸						
✓ Selection						
Single select						
Multi-select with CTRL On						
Show "Select all" option On O						

- 10. Click the **Select all** check box in the slicer.
- 11. Expand the option for the **Slicer header**.
- 12. Change the Title text to "Pick a country".

Vertical List, Title, Dropdown

13. In the **slicer** settings, **options** area, **Style** dropdown choose **Title**. Then change it to **Dropdown**. Finally, change it back to **Vertical** list. Noticed the differences.

14. Click the drop down and select **Argentina** and CTRL click on **Brazil**, then click away from the drop down.

Notice the drop down now says "Multiple selections".

- 15. Practice: Change the slicer back into a list box.
- 16. Experiment with slicers and their format properties as time permits.
- 17. Save your report.

K: Practice

As time permits create a new page, name it Employee Visuals, and then create multiple visualizations based on Employees and their sales. Include at least two charts and one slicer based on Employee Last Name. Below is one example:



6. Create Dashboards

Unit time: 30 minutes

Complete this unit and you will be able to:

- A. Define "Dashboard"
- B. Publish a report to the Power BI Service
- C. Create a dashboard
- D. Share a dashboard with others

A: Define "Dashboard"

According to Microsoft's Introduction to dashboards for Power BI designer's webpage³ a Power BI dashboard is like a single page Power BI report. That single page is often called a canvas. Dashboards are created with the Power BI service, but not with the Power BI desktop.

In the same way a Power BI report page can have multiple visualizations, a Power BI dashboard can have multiple *tiles*. The tiles are *pinned* from reports. When users select a tile in a Power BI dashboard, they are taken to the underlying report and its dataset.

The following table compares some of the differences between Power BI Dashboards and Reports:

Feature	Dashboards	Reports
Pages	Only one page	One or multiple pages
Data Source	One or multiple reports	One dataset per report
Available in	Power BI Service	Power BI Service Power BI Desktop
View underlying data set	No. Data can be exported but the tables and fields cannot be viewed in the dashboard.	Yes

³ <u>https://docs.microsoft.com/en-us/power-bi/create-reports/service-dashboards</u>

B: Publish a report to the Power BI Service

You can publish your Power BI report to the Power BI Service by doing the following:

- 1. Open your Power BI report in Power BI desktop.
- 2. From the **File** menu select **Publish**.
- 3. Select **Publish to Power BI**.
- 4. Enter your email address.
- 5. Click **Continue** to sign into the Power BI service.
- 6. Select a destination.
- 7. Click **Select**.
- 8. Wait a moment while the report is published.

	2	
	Dublish	
Constants	Publish	
1mm	A. Patrick to Prove II (3)	
	×	
Getalat	Enter your email address	
krappet.	Row & Database and the Prese & Landau and better logerine.	
Deport I	Sign in the webserver prior collaboration and access organizational connects	
1200 😰		
Damate and testings		
Get started	5	
	4	8
	Publish to Power BI	
	Select a destruction.	
	<u>6</u>	
	No optimized	
	0	
	0	5
	1	Publishing to Power 8I
		- classes
		Types Throw Repairs that Justic & Prove &
		art gas sages
		Bit you know? The set could a period one of part muscl instead for earlier plane.
		On the Waser pic, minor Multile Layout Lands must
		- And

C: Create a dashboard

Power BI dashboards can be created from scratch, from a report, or by duplicating an existing dashboard. The directions below show how to create a dashboard from a report.

- 1. Open your browser to **app.powerbi.com**.
- 2. If necessary, sign in.
- 3. Open your report.
- 4. Find the visual you would like to pin to a dashboard.
- 5. Hover the mouse over the visual.
- 6. Click the pin icon toward the top or bottom right.



 When the Pin to dashboard dialog box is displayed either choose Existing dashboard and the select the desired dashboard,



or

click **New dashboard** and enter a dashboard name.

The Pinned to dashboard dialog box appears.

- 8. If you want to add more tiles, click the X to close the dialog box, then repeat steps 4 through 8.
- 9. When you are ready to view or edit the dashboard click **Go to dashboard**.



10. To learn more about editing dashboards check out <u>https://docs.microsoft.com/en-us/power-bi/create-reports/service-dashboard-</u> <u>create</u>. This Microsoft webpage explains both how to create and edit a dashboard. It also includes a short video demonstration.

D: Share a dashboard with others

If you have a Power BI Pro license you can share your dashboard with others.

- 1. Open your dashboard in the Power BI service.
- 2. Click the share button.
- 3. Enter the recipient's name or email address.
- 4. Check your desired options.
- 5. Optional, enter a message for the recipient.
- 6. Click **Grant access**.



7. Practice Lab

In this lab you will practice creating multiple visualizations including the following:

- A. Bar charts, Tables and Slicers
- B. Column charts
- C. Line charts
- D. Area charts
- E. Scatter charts
- F. Ribbon charts
- G. Waterfall charts
- H. Pies, Donuts, Treemaps and Cards
- I. Funnels
- J. Maps
- K. Q & A

A: Bar charts, Tables and Slicers

Bar Charts 🖹 🖹

As you have seen, bar charts use horizontal bars to display data. They are excellent visualizations for comparing the value of multiple items.

Tables 🔲

Tables are like spreadsheets – they show fields in columns, and records in rows. They are useful in communicating the actual data to a viewer.

Slicers 🗳

As discussed in chapter 5, a slicer is a filter that can be viewed and manipulated on the page.

In this exercise you will create two bar charts, a table, and two slicers like the image below.



- 1. Start a new Power BI report.
- 2. Get your data from **Movies.xlsx** file and choose the **Lots of Movies** sheet.
- 3. Add a **Table** visualization that shows **Title**, **Rating**, and **Category**.

- 4. Show the border.
- 5. Resize the table as desired.
- 6. Create a Stacked Bar Chart.
 Drag the Ratings field to the Y-axis well.
 Drag the Title field to the X-axis well.
- 7. Change the Visualization's **Title** to **Ratings**.
- 8. Show the **Data Labels**.
- 9. Change the Data Labels, Values, Display units to None.
- 10. Show the X-axis but turn the X-axis title off.
- 11. Show the border.
- 12. Resize the visual as desired.
- 13. Create another Stacked Bar Chart.
 Drag the Category field to the Y-axis well.
 Drag the Title field to the X-axis well.
 Drag the Rating field to the Legend well.
- 14. Change the Visualization's **Title** to **Categories**.
- 15. Show **Data Labels**.
- 16. Show the X-axis, but turn off the X-axis title.
- 17. Show the border.
- 18. Add a **Slicer** for the **Category** field.
- 19. Show the border.
- 20. Resize as needed.
- 21. Change the **background color** to **gray** with **50% transparency**.
- 22. Add a second **slicer** for **Ratings**.
- 23. Show the border.

- 24. Change the **background color** to **light blue** with **50% transparency**.
- 25. Using the slicer answer the following questions:
 - How many G, PG, or PG-13 rated Action movies are in the data?
 - How many Historical and Prison movies are rated R?
 - Which categories have the most NR rated movies?

Practice exercise: Create a Stacked bar chart

In this exercise you will create and format a simple stacked bar chart based on the Xtreme report file. When finished, the report should look something like this.



Set the properties as shown below.

Property	Value	Property	Value
Visualization	Stacked Bar Chart	Title	On
Y-Axis	'Customer' [Region]	Title Text	Sales by Region
Y-axis	On	Data Labels	On
X-Axis	Extended Price	Data Labels > Values > Display Units	None
X-axis	On	Data Labels > Values > Decimal places	0
Legend	None	Canvas background >Color	Gray, 50% Transparency
Filter Field	'Customer' [Country]	Visual's Background Color	White
Filter Values	Australia	Bar Colors	Blue
Border	On	Page Name	Sales in Australia

Practice exercise: Create a Clustered bar chart

In this exercise you will create and format a simple **Clustered bar chart** based on the Xtreme report file. When finished, the report should look something like this.



Set the properties as shown below.

Property	Value	Property	Value
Visualization	Clustered Bar Chart	Title	On
Y-Axis	'Customer' [Region]	Title Text	Sales by Region
Y-axis	On	Data Labels	On
X-Axis	'All Sales Items' [Extended Price]	Data Labels > Values > Display Units	None
X-axis	On	Data Labels > Values > Decimal places	0
Legend	'Product' [Product Type Name]	Visual's Background Color	White
Legend	On	Border	On
Filter Field	'Customer' [Country]	Page Name	Sales in Italy
Filter Values	Italy	Canvas Background > Color	Gray,
Filter Field	Product Type Name		50% Transparency
Filter Values	Competition, Hybrid, Mountain		

B: Column charts

Column charts are like bar charts, except the bars are vertical instead of horizontal.

Stacked column chart

In this exercise you will create and format a simple **Stacked column chart** based on the **Xtreme** report file. When finished, the report should look something like this.



Set the properties as shown below.

Property	Value	Property	Value
Visualization	Stacked Column Chart	Title	On
Y-axis	'All Sales Items' [Qty]	Title Text	Bicycle Sales
Y-axis	On	Data Labels	On
X-axis	'Employee' [Last Name]	Total Labels	On
X-axis	On	Filter Field	Product Type Name
Legend	'Product' [Product Type Name]	Filter Values	Competition, Hybrid, Mountain
Legend	On	Columns > Colors	Competition = Red Hybrid = Purple Mountain = Blue
Clustered column chart

In this exercise you will create and format a simple **Clustered column chart** based on the **Xtreme** report file. When finished, the report should look something like this.



Duplicate the Stacked Column Chart.

Change the copied chart to a Clustered Column Chart.

Resize and reposition the charts as desired.

Rename the page to "Column Charts".

C: Line charts

Line charts show the overall shape of a series of values. They most often have an X-axis based on time. In this exercise you will create and format a simple **Line chart** based on the **Xtreme** report file. When finished, the report should look something like this.



- 1. If necessary, open the **Xtreme Bicycles Sales** report.
- 2. Add a new page. Name the page Line Chart.
- Add a Line chart visualization.
 Drag the 'Orders' [Order Date] to the X-axis well.
 Drag the 'All Sales Items' [Oty] to the Y-axis well.
 Drag the 'Product' [Product Class] to the Legend well.
- 4. Click the X-axis, Order Date down arrow and choose Order Date instead of Date Hierarchy.
- 5. Click the **Format** icon and turn the **Legend on**.
- 6. Expand the **Legend** property and set the **Position** to **Bottom Left**.
- 7. If necessary, **turn off** the **Data labels**.
- 8. **Expand** the **Filter pane**.
- 9. Expand the Filters on this visual, Order date area.
- 10. Change the **Filter type** to **Advanced Filtering**.

	Filters on t	his visua	1	22
	Order Da	ate		
	is on or a	fter Mor	nday,	
	Filter typ	e 🛈		
10	 Advanced filtering 		Ŷ	
-	Show iter	ms when	the valu	e
-	is on or	after		~
	3/15/20	3/15/2004		
	~	~	au.	
	12	00	AM	~
		~	J. I.	
12-	→● And	→ O Or	J.N	
12-	• And	O Or before	J	~
12- 13<	 And is on or 3/31/20 	O Or before		~
12-	 And is on or 3/31/20 	O Or before		~
12-	 And is on or 3/31/20 12 	O Or before	AM	~

- 11. For the **Show items when the value** drop-down choose **is on or after** and then enter **3/15/2004**.
- 12. Select the **And** option.
- 13. For the next drop down choose **is on or before** and then enter **3/31/2004**.
- 14. Click the **Apply filter** button.

D: Area charts

Area charts are line charts with the area between the line and the axis filled in with color. This helps emphasize the magnitude of change over time.

Area chart

In this exercise you will create an Area based on the line chart from the previous exercise.

- 1. Make sure you are in the Xtreme report file from the last exercise.
- 2. Right click on the page that has the line chart and choose Duplicate Page.
- 3. Rename the page to Area Chart.
- 4. Select the line chart visualization and then click on the **Area chart** icon.



5. Format the Area chart as desired.

Stacked Area Chart

- 1. Duplicate the page with the area chart.
- 2. Rename the page to **Stacked area chart**.
- 3. Select the area chart and change it to a **Stacked area chart**.



Notice the Stacked area chart is taller than the Area chart. Each successive (upper) line represents a cumulative total.

4. Format the Stacked area chart as desired.

E: Scatter charts

A scatter chart, also known as a bubble chart, is an excellent visualization for seeing the relationship between three numeric dimensions. The X-axis provides one dimension, the Y-axis provides the second, and the size of the bubble is the third dimension. In this exercise you will create a scatter chart similar to the one below.



- 1. Create a new Power Bi report based on the **Bubble Chart Data.xlsx** file.
- Add a Scatter Chart visualization.
 Drag the State field to the Legend well.
 Drag the Sales Per Sq Ft to the X-axis.
 Drag the Sales Variance % to the Y-axis well.
 Drag the Total Sales this Year to the Size well.
- 3. Hover the mouse over a bubble to reveal its tool tip.
- 4. Format the chart as desired.

F: Ribbon charts

Ribbon charts help viewers visualize data to quickly discover which category has the largest value, and to see changes in rank. In this exercise you will create a ribbon chart showing the number of movies per category and rating.



- 1. Start a new Power BI report.
- 2. Get your data from **Movies.xlsx** file and choose the **Lots of Movies** sheet.
- Add a ribbon visualization.
 Drag the Category field to the X-axis well.
 Drag the Title field to the Y-axis well.
 Drag the Rating field to the Legend well.
- 4. Turn on the **Data labels**.
- 5. **Expand** the **Data labels** property and in the **Values** section turn the **Overflow text** option **On**.
- 6. Add a meaningful **Title**.
- 7. Format the **Ribbons**, **Colors** as follows:

G	Green	R	Red
PG	Yellow	NC-17	Black
PG13	Orange	NR	Light blue

- 8. Add a **Slicer** for **Category**.
- 9. Add a second **Slicer** for **Rating**.
- 10. Format the slicers and ribbon chart as desired.
- 11. As time permits, experiment with selecting categories and ratings to see their effect on the chart.

G: Waterfall charts

Waterfall charts are excellent for viewing a running total because one can see how each piece adds to the total. In this exercise you will create a waterfall chart for employee salaries.



- 1. If necessary, open your Xtreme Bicycles Sales report.
- Add a Waterfall chart visualization to a new page.
 Drag the Employee > Last Name field to the Category well.
 Drag the Employee > Salary field to the Y-axis well.
- 3. **Expand** the **Y-axis** well and **change** the **calculation** to **Sum** instead of Count.
- 4. Turn on the **Data labels**.
- 5. Expand the **Data labels** and change the **Value Display units** to **None**.
- 6. Format the chart as desired.

H: Pies, Donuts, Treemaps and Cards

Pie charts, Donut charts, and Treemaps are good visuals for comparing data between different groups. In this exercise you will create a pie chart of movies per rating. You will add a page filter to limit the list to G, PG, PG-13, and R rated movies. You will then duplicate the pie to create a donut chart and then a treemap. Finally, you will create a Card visualization which you will place in the donut chart.



Create the pie chart

- 1. Create a new Power BI report based on **Movies.xlsx**.
- Add a Pie Chart visualization.
 Drag the Rating field to the Legend well.
 Drag the Title field to the Values well.
- 3. Expand the Filters pane.
- 4. From the Fields pane, **drag** the **Rating** field into the **Filters on this page** section of the Filters pane.
- 5. For the rating filter, choose the **G**, **PG**, **PG-13**, and **R** ratings.
- 6. In the Visualizations pane, click the format icon, and then expand the Data colors section.
- 7. Change the Slices, Colors as shown below:
 - G Green PG Yellow PG-13 Orange R Red

Create the Donut chart

- 1. **Duplicate** the **Pie chart** visualization and move it to the right.
- 2. Change the new chart to a **Donut chart**.

Create the Treemap

- 1. **Duplicate** the **Pie chart** visualization again.
- 2. Move it to the right of the other two charts.
- 3. Change the new chart to a **Treemap**.
- 4. **Turn on** the **Data labels** for the **Treemap**.
- 5. If necessary, **expand** the **Data labels** property and change the **Display units** to **None**.

Create a Card visualization

- On the same page, add a Card visualization.
 Drag the Title field into the Fields well.
- 2. Click the fields well drop down and choose **Count**.
- 3. Click the fields well drop down again and choose **Rename for this visual**. Enter **Movies**.
- 4. **Turn off** the **background** for the Card visual.
- 5. **Resize** and **move** the Card visual so it is in the center of the Donut chart.
- 6. Format the visualizations as desired.

Group the Card and Donut visuals

Because the Card and Donut visuals overlap, they appear to be one chart. However, if you move one, the other will not move with it. To fix that you will group the two charts.

- 1. Select the **Card** visual then using the control key click on the Donut chart.
- 2. From the ribbon's **Format** menu, click **Group**.

I: Funnels

A funnel chart displays a linear process. For example, in this exercise you will create a funnel chart that shows the results of an email campaign. You will see many emails were sent, less were viewed, some were clicked the email's call to action button, less added the product to their cart, and finally it shows how many completed their purchase.



- 1. Start a new Power BI report.
- 2. Get your data from **Email Campaign.xlsx** file.
- Add a Funnel visualization.
 Drag the Stage field to the Category well.
 Drag the Prospects field to the Values well.
- 4. Format the chart as desired.

J: Maps

Two Power BI visualizations make maps. The first, called Map, creates a bubble map. The second, called Filled Map, fills in various geographic areas with color. In the next two exercises you will create both types of maps.

Bubble Map

In this exercise you will create a new report that maps the population in the state of Utah. The report will include three visualizations: a Map, a Table, and a Slicer.



- 1. Start a new Power BI report.
- Get your data from the <u>https://worldpopulationreview.com/zips/utah</u> webpage. If you have any issues you can also get the data from the Utah Population by Zip Code.csv file.
- 3. Choose **Table 1** and click **Load**.
- 4. Switch to **Data** view.
- 5. Rename Table 1 to Utah Population by Zip Code.
- Select the Zip Code column, then from the ribbon set the Column tools, Properties, Data Category to Postal Code.
- 7. Select the **City** column, then from the ribbon set the **Column tools**, **Properties**, **Data Category** to **City**.
- 8. Select the **County** column, then from the ribbon set the **Column tools**, **Properties**, **Data Category** to **County**.

- 9. Create a new calculated column named Location with the following formula: Location = [City] & ", " & [County] & ", UT, USA, " & [Zip Code]
- 10. Select the Location column, then from the ribbon set the Column tools, Properties, Data Category to Place.
- 11. Select the **Population** column, then from the ribbon set the **Column tools**, **Formatting**, and click the **Comma** icon.
- 12. Return to the **Report** view.
- 13. Add a Map visualization.Drop the Location field in the Location well.Drop the Population field in the Bubble size well.
- Add a Table visualization.
 Add the County, City, and Population fields to the table.
- 15. Add a Slicer visualization.Add the County, City, and Zip Code fields to the slicer.
- 16. In the slicer, check the **Cache County** check box.
- 17. Zoom in on the map as desired.
- 18. Format the visuals to your liking as time permits.
- 19. Save the file as **Utah Population Map.pbix**.

Filled Map

In this exercise you will create a new report that maps a company's market share per state. The report will include three visualizations: a Filled Map, a Table, and a Slicer.



- 1. Start a new Power BI report.
- 2. Get your data from **Pct Units Market Share by State.xlsx** file.
- 3. In the **Data view** rename **Sheet1** to **Pct Market Share per State**.
- 4. Select the **State** field, and then using the ribbon's **Column tools** tab, change the **Data Category** to **State or Province**.
- 5. Select the **Market Share** field and then using the ribbon's **Column tools** tab set the format to **Percentage** and set the decimal places to 2.
- 6. Return to the **Report view**.
- Add Filled Map visualization.
 Drop the State field in the Location well.
 Drop the Market Share in the Tooltips well.
 Resize the visualization as desired.
- 8. Click the **format** icon and expand the **Fill colors** property.
- 9. Click the *fx* button.

The Default color – Data colors dialog box appears.

10. Set the various properties based on the screen shot and table below, then click **OK**.



Property	Setting
Format style	Gradient
What field should we base this on?	Sum of Market Share
Summarization	Sum
How should we format empty values?	As zero
Minimum	Lowest value
Minimum color	Aqua Green
Add a middle color	Checked
Center	Middle value
Center color	White
Maximum	Highest value
Maximum color	Red

- 11. Add a Table visualization with the State, Market Share and Rank fields.
- 12. In the table visualization, **click** the **Rank** column heading to sort the table by Rank.
- 13. Add a Slicer with **Rank** and **Market Share** fields.
- 14. Format the report and visualizations per your preferences as time permits.

K: Q&A

The Q&A Visualization allows users to either ask a question or choose one of multiple suggested questions. Power BI will then instantly create a visualization that answers the question.

Help Q&A understand people better by adding synonyms.			Add synonyms now \times	
☐ Ask a question about your data			루 🕸	
Try one of these to get started				
total qty	show products	count employees	show the maximum qty	
			Show all suggestions	

In this exercise you will create a new page and add a Q&A Visualization to it.

- 1. **Open** the **Xtreme Bicycle Sales** report from earlier.
- 2. Add a **new page** to your report.
- 3. Add the **Q&A** visualization to the new page.
- 4. Resize the visualization as desired.
- 5. Notice the text box that says, Ask a question about your data. As the prompt says in this box you can type a question about your data.
- 6. Notice the blue boxes which represent standard questions the computer can answer.
- 7. Click the **Show all suggestions** link.

Notice additional "questions" are displayed in boxes.

- Click on one of the boxes.
 Notice the "answer" that Power BI generates in the Q&A visualization.
 Notice also the earlier "Ask a question" text box has been filled in with the text of the question.
- 9. Click inside the text box, and then click the x to delete the question.

- 10. Enter the following question and press enter. How many employees have an extended price?
- 11. Change the question to the following and press enter. Which employees have an extended price?

Notice a table visual is created to answer the question.

12. Change the question to the following and press enter. Extended Price in USA by product name as a tree

Notice Power BI creates a treemap of sales per product name in the United States.

Notice some of the terms are underlined in blue. You can click on these to find possible replacement options.

Notice any term underlined in red is not understood by Power BI.

13. Click the "Turn this Q&A result into a standard visual" 🖻 button. Notice the Q&A has been replaced with the visualization.

Appendix A: Installing Power BI Desktop

The following instructions show you how to install Microsoft Power BI Desktop on a Windows PC. Because Microsoft Power BI may connect to a data source related to Microsoft Office, it is important that the correct version be selected. For example, if your PC uses a 32-bit version of Microsoft Access, then installing the 64-bit version of Microsoft Power BI Desktop may cause problems. Therefore, these instructions first show how to check which version of Microsoft Office is installed.

- 1. If **Microsoft Access** is installed, open it. If not, open Microsoft **Excel** instead.
- 2. If the ribbon is displayed, click on the **File** menu.
- 3. From the menu on the left, select Account.
- 4. Click the **About Access** button.
- 5. Note if the version is 32-bit or 64-bit.



6. Click **OK**, then close Microsoft Access.

- 7. Open your browser and go to the following web address. https://www.microsoft.com/en-us/download/details.aspx?id=58494
- 8. Verify the selected language is **English** and then click the red **Download** button.



9. If your version of Office is 64-bit then check the PBIDesktopSetup_x64.exe.
 If your version of Office is 32-bit then check the PBIDesktopSetup.exe.
 Then click Next.

Choose the download you want		©
The Taylow	24	
Philadelightag at each	200210	terminal surroup
C2 Total and a grade and a	1122.58	1. W Cartestarian and
		Sold Sam 278,2 MB

Wait while the setup application file is downloaded.

10. Launch the setup program by clicking on it, then follow the prompts.

Appendix B: Additional Resources

Getting Started with Power BI

https://docs.microsoft.com/en-us/power-bi/fundamentals/desktop-getting-started

Get Power Bl Desktop <u>https://docs.microsoft.com/en-us/power-bi/fundamentals/desktop-get-the-desktop</u>